
 
 

OFFICE OF POLICY AND MANAGEMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
To:  Members of the MARB 

From:  Julian Freund, OPM 

Date:  April 1, 2019 

Subject:  Summary of 3/12/19 West Haven Subcommittee Meeting 
 
The West Haven Subcommittee met on March 12 and discussed the following items:   
 
Board of Education FY 2020 Budget 

Superintendent Cavallaro provided an overview of the proposed FY 2019/20 budget. The proposed 

budget provides for a $1.24 million, or 1.33%, increase over the current year budget.  The priority 

enhancements funded in the proposed budget include the addition of security guards at 7 schools, 

computer lab upgrades at the K-8 grades, and replacement of aging maintenance vehicles.  The 

proposed budget reflects recently concluded contracts including the teachers’ contract which included a 

wage freeze and shift to high deductible health plan.  Members discussed ECS funding in the Governor’s 

proposed budget. 

 

West Haven Professional Firefighters Tentative Agreement 

The Subcommittee reviewed the Firefighters tentative agreement. The agreement covering the period 

July 2017 – June 2022 provides for four years of 0% wage increases followed by a 1% increase in FY 

2022.  The agreement also implements a high deductible health insurance plan.  The subcommittee 

voted to recommend approval of the contract to the full MARB.  The contract is an action item on the 

MARB 4/4 agenda.   

Preliminary Plan for Efficiencies, Consolidations and Shared Services (Budgetary Savings)  

The Subcommittee revisited the health insurance analysis conducted by Segal Consulting which 
considered the impact of shifting employees and retirees to two versions of a high deductible plan, and 
an option for implementation of the State Partnership Plan for active employees.  Members asked that 
further analysis be conducted and that Segal attend a subcommittee meeting to provide further detail. 
 
The City is seeking a health benefit consultant to assist in developing a plan to augment the City’s 
capacity in the area of employee benefits administration.  Qualified consultants have been referred to 
the City to assist in the process. 
 
Guidance Regarding Development of FY 2019/20 City Budget  

The timing and content of development of the City’s FY 2020 budget was discussed. Members discussed 
the importance of consistency with the 5-Year Plan, including assumptions for achieving $1.2 million in 
efficiency savings.  The Mayor’s recommended budget was released on March 21st. 
 
Other Related Business 
The Secretary reiterated the importance of following up with the auditor on the receipt of the 2018 
management letter.  The management letter has been received, and is included in the MARB meeting 
packet for 4/4 along with the City’s plan for remediating the issues raised. 



MEMORANDUM 
Municipal Accountability Review Board 

 
 
To:  Members of the Municipal Accountability Review Board 

From:  Julian Freund, OPM 

Subject: West Haven Bond Anticipation Note Issuance 

Date:  March 28, 2019 
 
Background: 
 
The City of West Haven authorized a high school renovation project in June 2017 with an estimated total 
cost of $133.25 million (inclusive of borrowing costs).  Of that amount, approximately $95.67 million is 
estimated to be reimbursable by State school construction grants.  The City’s share of the cost totals 
approximately $37.58 million. 
 
As part of the City’s five year planning process, the City’s bond advisor, Bill Lindsay, prepared a debt 
service plan which included anticipated borrowing related to the high school project.  The plan relies on 
short term borrowing (bond anticipation notes) during the early phases of construction with permanent 
financing issued in three phases between FY 2020 and FY 2022.  The use of short-term borrowing and 
the timing of the planned bond issues are intended to smooth out the budgetary impact of debt service 
payments and to align the new debt service requirements with the tapering off of previously issued debt 
over the next several years. 
 
The City is now preparing to issue $12.6 million in new Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs) to fund the 
continuation of construction expenses.  These notes will mature in October 2019 at which time they will 
be permanently financed as bonds.  In addition to the new BANs, the City is also rolling over $9.35 
million of notes maturing on April 2 that were originally issued in October 2017 and rolled forward in 
October 2018. 
 
The MARB statute requires the board be provided with an opportunity to review and comment on 
proposed debt obligations before their issuance. 
 
Discussion: 
 
As noted in the memo from Mr. Lindsay, the BANs themselves have no direct budgetary impact as the 
interest will be capitalized and incorporated into the permanent financing (bond issuance) scheduled for 
the fall.  The scheduled debt service payments resulting from the planned bonding for the project is 
displayed in the final table in the memo, labelled “Current Financing Plan.”  The capitalized interest on 
previously issued BANs and the upcoming BAN series totals approximately $652,000. 
 
The overall plan, consisting of short term borrowing to meet the cash requirement of construction 
progress followed by three phases of bond issuance, is generally in line with the original borrowing plan 
for the high school, though the timing and amounts have been modified as the project moves forward.   
The “Current Financing Plan” in Mr. Lindsay’s memo is accompanied by an exhibit depicting the original 
financing plan for the high school project.  Total projected debt service costs in the revised plan are 
approximately $410,000 higher than the original plan over the life of the anticipated bonds.  The 



following table compares the original and revised debt service projections related to the high school 
project and their related impact on debt service in the City’s 5-Year Plan. 
 

 
 
  
 
Attachments: 

 3/27/19 Memo from Bill Lindsay, Hilltop Securities 

 3/28/19 E-mail memo from Bill Lindsay, Hilltop Securities 

Debt Service Original Financing Current Financing Variance: H.S. Resulting

Fiscal Year In 5-Year Plan Plan: High Sch. Plan: High Sch. Financing Plan Debt Service

2018/19 19,294,064              -                              -                            -                        19,294,064          

2019/20 19,670,087              299,250                     312,500                   13,250                  19,683,337          

2020/21 19,779,731              1,573,469                 1,559,375                (14,094)                19,765,637          

2021/22 20,689,965              2,129,688                 2,162,547                32,859                  20,722,824          

2022/23 14,373,995              3,722,075                 3,756,578                34,503                  14,408,498          



 
 

1 

As requested, the following is summary of the City’s proposal to issue short‐term Bond Anticipation Notes 
(BANs) to fund its on‐going high school renovation project. 

Plan of Finance 

The City currently has $9,158,000  in outstanding BANs that mature on April 2, 2019.   The notes were 
originally issued on October 3, 2017 in the amount of $9,000,000 and were rolled over on October 2, 2018.  
The  current  plan of  finance  calls  for  the City  to  issue  the  first  series  of  BANs on April  2,  2019  in  the 
approximate amount of $9,350,000 to roll‐over the maturing BANS and pay costs of issuance, including 
capitalized interest.  A second series of BANs would be issued later in April, following MARB review and 
comment at its April 4th meeting.  The second series would be in the amount of $12,650,000 and would 
be issued to fund the City’s portion of project costs over the next 6 months plus costs of issuance.  Both 
series of BANs would mature on October 2, 2019. 

Project Expenditure and Revenue Summary 

City Council Appropriation/Authorization Approval Date  June 26, 2017 

Anticipated total project cost:  $130,446,000 

Total authorization including capitalized issuance costs:  $133,250,000 

Anticipated State reimbursement:  $  95,673,000 

City net share of project costs:  $  37,577,000 

City bonds issued to date:  $                    0 

Detail of Historic and Projected Project Expenditures and Revenues 

The following represents the City’s net cash needs over the next 6 months: 

Total spending through February 2019:  $34,902,284  

Projected spending through October 2019:  $24,143,018  

Total capitalized note interest and cost of issuance (proposed & prior notes)  $377,693  

Total spending  $59,422,995  

Less:    

  Historic reimbursement to date  $21,717,991  

  Projected reimbursement through October 2019  $16,383,329  

Net City cash needs  $21,321,675  

Proposed BAN issuance (2 series due 10/2/19)  $22,000,000 

To:  Melissa McCaw, Secretary, Office of Policy and Management 
  Julian Freund, Office of Policy and Management 

From:  Bill Lindsay, Hilltop Securities 

CC:  Mayor Nancy Rossi, City of West Haven 
  Frank Cieplinski, Director of Finance, City of West Haven 
  Michael Malone, MARB Liaison 
  John Stafstrom, Pullman & Comley 
  Michael Andreana, Pullman & Comley 

Date:  3/27/2019 

Re:  City of West Haven Bond Anticipation Notes 
   



City of West Haven 
Proposed Bond Anticipation Notes, April 2019 
March 27, 2019 
 
 

2 

Comparison with prior Plan of Finance 

The proposed note issuance is consistent with prior project plan of finance as provided in June 2018 and 
included in the City’s September 2018 5‐year Recovery Plan.  The original plan of finance called for $19.9 
million of notes to be issued in October 2018 with a maturity date in October 2019.  At maturity, a portion 
of the notes were to be permanently financed and additional new money notes were to be added to the 
balance and reissued for 12 months.  The original plan called for a combined financing of $29.4 million in 
October  2019,  consisting  of  approximately  $12.6 million  in  bonds  and  approximately  $16.7 million  in 
notes.  Due to timing of the construction draws, the City only issued $9.1 million of notes in October 2018 
with a maturity date of April 2, 2019.  The current plan of finance would capitalize the interest due on the 
current notes increasing the amount of the first note issue to $9.35 million.  The second series of notes in 
would be issued later  in April and both series of notes would mature on October 2, 2019.   This would 
return the City to an annual October issuance cycle consistent with the prior plan of finance.  The current 
plan of finance calls for a combined financing of $30.5 million including $12.5 million of bonds and $18 
million of notes in October 2019.  

Budgetary Impact of Proposed Notes Issues 

There is no immediate budget impact for the two proposed note issues as both cost of issuance and short‐
term note interest is being capitalized into the project rather than being paid from the City’s General Fund.  
The budgetary impact of the proposed bond issue in October 2019 is consistent with the prior plan of 
finance submitted in June and September 2018. 

Anticipated Schedule of Permanent Financing the Notes 

The current plan of finance calls for the City to permanently finance a portion of the notes in October 
2019.  At this time, there is no foreseeable reason that the City will not meet the proposed schedule. We 
believe  that  the  City’s  credit  profile  has  improved with  the  receipt  of  the  Restructuring  Funds which 
contributed to the City achieving a positive cumulative General Fund Balance as of June 30, 2018.  We 
fully expect the City to have market access in October 2019 to permanently finance the two maturing note 
series. 
 



8/23/2018 5:51 PM West.Haven_Pro.Forma.Debt.Impact_WHHS.-CIP_2-21-18.xlsx

City of West Haven

Pro Forma Debt Service Impact

West Haven High School Project 

Phase‐in borrowing

BANs 2017 BANs 2018 Bonds 2019 BANs 2019 Bonds 2020 BANs 2020 Bonds 2021 BANs 2021 BANs 2022 BANs 2023

$9,000,000 $19,920,000 $12,600,000 $16,680,000 $12,640,000 $11,060,000 $12,340,000 $4,785,000 $4,785,000 $4,785,000

Dated: 10/3/17 Dated: 10/3/18 Dated: 10/3/19 Dated: 10/3/19 Dated: 10/3/20 Dated: 10/3/20 Dated: 10/3/21 Dated: 10/3/21 Dated: 10/3/22 Dated: 10/3/23 Total

Fiscal Due: 10/3/18 Due: 10/3/19 Due: 10/1/20‐39 Due: 10/3/20 Due: 10/1/21‐40 Due: 10/3/21 Due: 10/3/23‐41 Due: 10/3/22 Due: 10/3/23 Due: 10/3/24 WHHS Project 1 Fiscal

Year Interest @ 1.754% Interest @ 2.6% Interest @ 4.75% Interest @ 3.35% Interest @ 5.00% Interest @ 3.85% Interest @ 5.125% Interest @ 4.13% Interest @ 4.33% Interest @ 4.56% Year

Ending Interest Interest P&I Interest P&I Interest P&I Interest Interest Interest P&I Ending

2018 ‐$                             ‐$                             ‐$                              ‐$                              ‐$                              ‐$                                ‐$                             ‐$                             ‐$                             ‐$                          2018

2019 157,860                  ‐                               ‐                                ‐                                ‐                                ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               ‐                            2019

2020 ‐                               517,920                  299,250                   ‐                                ‐                                ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               299,250               2020

2021 ‐                               ‐                               1,257,469                558,780                   316,000                   ‐                                ‐                                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               1,573,469            2021

2022 ‐                               ‐                               1,181,475                ‐                                632,000                   425,810                   316,213                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,129,688            2022

2023 ‐                               ‐                               1,151,550                ‐                                1,314,500                ‐                                1,256,025                  197,415                  ‐                               ‐                               3,722,075            2023

2024 ‐                               ‐                               1,121,625                ‐                                1,060,125                ‐                                1,018,606                  ‐                               207,460                  ‐                               3,200,356            2024

2025 ‐                               ‐                               1,091,700                ‐                                1,036,375                ‐                                996,569                     ‐                               ‐                               218,120                  3,124,644            2025

2026 ‐                               ‐                               1,061,775                ‐                                1,027,250                ‐                                1,140,175                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               3,229,200            2026

2027 ‐                               ‐                               1,031,850                ‐                                1,207,500                ‐                                1,148,400                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               3,387,750            2027

2028 ‐                               ‐                               1,001,925                ‐                                1,172,500                ‐                                1,115,600                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               3,290,025            2028

2029 ‐                               ‐                               972,000                   ‐                                1,137,500                ‐                                1,082,800                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               3,192,300            2029

2030 ‐                               ‐                               942,075                   ‐                                1,102,500                ‐                                1,050,000                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               3,094,575            2030

2031 ‐                               ‐                               912,150                   ‐                                1,067,500                ‐                                1,017,200                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,996,850            2031

2032 ‐                               ‐                               877,344                   ‐                                1,032,500                ‐                                984,400                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,894,244            2032

2033 ‐                               ‐                               847,656                   ‐                                997,500                   ‐                                951,600                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,796,756            2033

2034 ‐                               ‐                               817,969                   ‐                                962,500                   ‐                                918,800                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,699,269            2034

2035 ‐                               ‐                               788,281                   ‐                                927,500                   ‐                                886,000                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,601,781            2035

2036 ‐                               ‐                               758,594                   ‐                                892,500                   ‐                                853,200                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,504,294            2036

2037 ‐                               ‐                               728,906                   ‐                                857,500                   ‐                                820,400                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,406,806            2037

2038 ‐                               ‐                               699,219                   ‐                                822,500                   ‐                                787,600                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,309,319            2038

2039 ‐                               ‐                               669,531                   ‐                                787,500                   ‐                                754,800                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,211,831            2039

2040 ‐                               ‐                               639,844                   ‐                                752,500                   ‐                                722,000                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,114,344            2040

2041 ‐                               ‐                               ‐                                ‐                                717,500                   ‐                                689,200                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               1,406,700            2041

2042 ‐                               ‐                               ‐                                ‐                                ‐                                ‐                                656,400                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               656,400               2042

157,860$                517,920$                18,852,188$           558,780$                19,823,750$          425,810$                19,165,988$            195,050$               207,460$               218,120$               57,841,925$      
1

New West Haven High School

Projected WHHS Debt service cashflow does not include $2,295,798 in short‐term BAN interest that will be charged to the project (i.e. capitalized interest).

Phased‐in Borrowing for WHHS

Prepared by IBIC LLC Page 1 of 1 WHHS.Debt.Impact

BLindsay
Text Box
Original Financing Plan from February 2018



3/26/2019 8:56 AM W.Haven_Pro.Forma.Debt.Impact_WHHS_3-21-19.xlsx

City of West Haven

Pro Forma Debt Service Impact

West Haven High School

Phase‐in borrowing

BANs 2017 BANs 2018 BANs 2019A Bonds 2019 BANs 2019B Bonds 2020 BANs 2020 Bonds 2021 BANs 2021 BANs 2022 BANs 2023

$9,000,000 $9,157,000 $22,000,000 $12,500,000 $18,000,000 $13,000,000 $16,800,000 $12,075,000 $10,525,000 $10,525,000 $10,525,000

Dated: 10/3/17 Dated: 10/3/18 Dated: 4/2/19 Dated: 10/2/19 Dated: 10/2/19 Dated: 10/1/20 Dated: 10/1/20 Dated: 10/1/21 Dated: 10/1/21 Dated: 10/1/22 Dated: 10/1/23 Total

Fiscal Due: 10/3/18 Due: 4/2/19 Due: 10/2/19 Due: 10/1/20‐39 Due: 10/1/20 Due: 10/1/22‐40 Due: 10/1/21 Due: 10/1/23‐41 Due: 10/1/22 Due: 10/1/23 Due: 10/1/24 WHHS Project 
1

Fiscal

Year Interest @ 1.754% Interest @ 3.249% Interest @ 3.168% Interest @ 4.15% Interest @ 3.5% Interest @ 4.43% Interest @ 3.5% Interest @ 4.67% Interest @ 3.5% Interest @ 3.5% Interest @ 3.5% Year

Ending Interest Interest Interest P&I Interest P&I Interest P&I Interest Interest Interest P&I Ending

2018 ‐$                                ‐$                               ‐$                                ‐$                             ‐$                             ‐$                             ‐$                                ‐$                             ‐$                             ‐$                             ‐$                          2018

2019 157,422                     ‐                                 ‐                                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               ‐                                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               ‐                            2019

2020 ‐                                  148,772                     346,544                     312,500                   ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               ‐                                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               312,500               2020

2021 ‐                                  ‐                                 1,234,375                630,000                   325,000                   ‐                               ‐                                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               1,559,375            2021

2022 ‐                                  ‐                                 1,203,125                ‐                               650,000                   588,000                   309,422                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,162,547            2022

2023 ‐                                  ‐                                 1,171,875                ‐                               1,356,875                ‐                               1,227,828                  368,375                  ‐                               ‐                               3,756,578            2023

2024 ‐                                  ‐                                 1,140,625                ‐                               1,101,250                ‐                               1,000,922                  ‐                               368,375                  ‐                               3,242,797            2024

2025 ‐                                  ‐                                 1,109,375                ‐                               1,076,250                ‐                               1,027,859                  ‐                               ‐                               368,375                  3,213,484            2025

2026 ‐                                  ‐                                 1,078,125                ‐                               1,051,250                ‐                               1,076,594                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               3,205,969            2026

2027 ‐                                  ‐                                 1,046,875                ‐                               1,148,125                ‐                               1,097,125                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               3,292,125            2027

2028 ‐                                  ‐                                 1,015,625                ‐                               1,214,375                ‐                               1,066,375                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               3,296,375            2028

2029 ‐                                  ‐                                 984,375                   ‐                               1,178,125                ‐                               1,059,984                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               3,222,484            2029

2030 ‐                                  ‐                                 953,125                   ‐                               1,141,875                ‐                               1,027,953                  ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               3,122,953            2030

2031 ‐                                  ‐                                 921,875                   ‐                               1,105,625                ‐                               995,922                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               3,023,422            2031

2032 ‐                                  ‐                                 890,625                   ‐                               1,069,375                ‐                               963,891                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,923,891            2032

2033 ‐                                  ‐                                 859,375                   ‐                               1,033,125                ‐                               931,859                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,824,359            2033

2034 ‐                                  ‐                                 828,125                   ‐                               996,875                   ‐                               899,828                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,724,828            2034

2035 ‐                                  ‐                                 796,875                   ‐                               960,625                   ‐                               867,797                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,625,297            2035

2036 ‐                                  ‐                                 765,625                   ‐                               924,375                   ‐                               835,766                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,525,766            2036

2037 ‐                                  ‐                                 734,375                   ‐                               888,125                   ‐                               803,734                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,426,234            2037

2038 ‐                                  ‐                                 703,125                   ‐                               851,875                   ‐                               771,703                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,326,703            2038

2039 ‐                                  ‐                                 671,875                   ‐                               815,625                   ‐                               739,672                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,227,172            2039

2040 ‐                                  ‐                                 640,625                   ‐                               779,375                   ‐                               707,641                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               2,127,641            2040

2041 ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                               ‐                               743,125                   ‐                               699,969                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               1,443,094            2041

2042 ‐                                  ‐                                 ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               666,656                     ‐                               ‐                               ‐                               666,656               2042

157,422$                   148,772$                   346,544$                   19,062,500$           630,000$                 20,411,250$           588,000$                 18,778,500$              195,050$                368,375$                368,375$                58,252,250$       
1

New West Haven High School

Projected WHHS Debt service cashflow does not include $2,975,862 in short‐term BAN interest that will be charged to the project (i.e. capitalized interest).

Phased‐in Borrowing for WHHS

Prepared by Hilltop Securities Inc. Page 1 of 1 WHHS.Debt.Impact

BLindsay
Text Box
Current Financing Plan



1

Freund, Julian

From: Bill Lindsay (HTS) <Bill.Lindsay@hilltopsecurities.com>
Sent: Thursday, March 28, 2019 10:07 AM
To: McCaw, Melissa; Freund, Julian
Cc: Andreana, Michael J.; Stafstrom, John F.; Frank Cieplinski; Nancy R. Rossi; Michael 

Milone; Savitsky, Linda
Subject: RE: City of West Haven BAN Issuance

Secretary McCaw and Mr. Freund, 
 
As requested, the following is a brief discussion of the rationale of the proposed financing plan for the West Haven High
School project.  By way of background,  in September 2002 the City  issued $67 million  in pension bonds which will be
completely retired  in March 2022.  The  financing plan  for the high school project was  intentionally developed to  take
advantage of the drop‐off in City debt service created by the final payment of the pension bonds.  Specifically, City total 
debt service will decrease from $16.2 million in FY 2021‐22 to $7.6 million in FY 2022‐23, for a reduction of $8.6 million. 
The financing plan utilizes a series of short‐term Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs) to push out the bond issuance until the
bonds can be legally structured under state statutes to target the drop‐off in fiscal year 2022‐23.  Additionally, the plan 
calls for a series of three bond issues to help reduce the budgetary impact of the debt for the project by phasing‐in the 
debt.  This approach is particularly important given the City’s recent financing constraints.  Please see page #4 of the memo
I provided on March 27th for an illustration of the financing plan including the use of short‐term notes and the multiple 
bond series. 
 
You asked a question about the additional cost related to funding the project with a series of bond issues, rather than one
large issue at the beginning of the project.  I have estimated that had the City issued a $35.4 million bond issue in October 
2017 (the first issue date of BANs for the project) the City would have paid a total of $54.6 million in debt service over a
20 year period.  Under the current financing plan, for the three series of bonds inclusive of capitalized short‐term interest, 
the  City  will  pay  combined  debt  service  of  approximately  $58.3  million  over  24  years,  for  a  difference  of  $3.7
million.  Please note that the principal amount of the single issuance would have been less by approximately $2.1 million
because there would have been no capitalized short‐term interest. For your information, last night I proposed some minor
changes in the structure of the proposed high school bonds which will increase the projected total debt service to $58.8
million, or approximately $500 thousand more in interest expense over the term of the financings (24 years).  Finally, in 
defense of the current financing plan, had the City issued one upfront bond issue the City would not have meet the 3 year
spending requirement of federal tax code given the timing and nature of the project. 
 
I hope you find this explanation helpful.  Please feel free to contact me with any further questions. 
 
Best regards, 
Bill Lindsay 
 
Bill Lindsay 
Managing Director 
Hilltop Securities Inc. 
129 Samson Rock Drive, Suite A 
Madison, CT 06443 
Direct: 860-290-3002 
Mobile: 860-227-8701 
bill.lindsay@hilltopsecurities.com 
 
 

 



 

 

City of West Haven
February FY2019 Monthly Financial Report to 

the Municipal Accountability Review Board
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

April

City of West Haven
FY2019 Monthly Financial Report to 

the Municipal Accountability Review Board

April 4th 2019 

City of West Haven 
FY2019 Monthly Financial Report to 

the Municipal Accountability Review Board 



Page 1  

 

 

City of West Haven 

Budget and Financial Report to the 

Municipal Accountability Review Board 

 
Contents ……………………………………………………………   1 

 

Memorandum – West Haven Financial Report………………   2 

 

FY19 Expenditure Summary - Departments………...……...   6 

 

FY18 Expenditure Summary - Departments………...……...   7 

 

FY19 Revenue Summary - Subcategories………...……….…   8 

 

FY18 Revenue Summary - Subcategories………...……….…   9 

 

FY18 and FY19 Property Tax Collections Report………….. 10 

 

FY19 Expenditure Summary - Subcategories..……………. 11 

 

FY19 Category of Revenues & Expenditures Summary….. 12 

 

  



 

  Interoffice Memorandum

  To: Municipal Accountability Review Board

  From: Frank M. Cieplinski

  Date: 3/28/2019 

  Subject: City of West Haven Monthly Financial Report 

 

 

I) Introduction 

 

I am transmitting the City’s monthly financial report for the period ended 

which includes the General Fund.  The Sewer Fund, and the Allingtown Fire Department are 

transmitted under a separate cover.

 

This is our monthly report which provides a narrative overview on the status of budget and 

projected fiscal year ending revenue and expenditure estimates for the General Fund.  These 

projections are based on a myriad of assumptions, which could change as the operational 

demands of the City evolve and we continue to refine the process and methodology used.  

However with this template now developed, we have a baseline of information to allow us to 

identify and adapt to monthly budget variations in a more timely and efficient manner.

 

As previously stated, we have continued to enhance our monitoring and analytical method

which have resulted in more accurate estimates of year

will notice some variations in estimates from last month’s report.

 

II) General Fund Overview 

 

A. Expenditures 

 

Expenditures to date are tracking significantly less than

this same fiscal period last year when factoring out the debt service and education costs.

 

City Budget Comparison Excluding

Budget / Actual

FY19 $55,128,931 

FY18 $52,742,134 

 

The most significant over-expenditur

which exceeded it’s budget appropriation by approximately $1.74M last fiscal year.  This 

account was increased by $1.95M in FY19

recommended by Segal Consulting.  This account is tracking at a spending percent of 

compared to 72.10% for the same period in FY18.

Page 2  

Interoffice Memorandum-Office of Mayor Nancy Rossi 

: Municipal Accountability Review Board 

: Frank M. Cieplinski 

: City of West Haven Monthly Financial Report February 

I am transmitting the City’s monthly financial report for the period ended February

which includes the General Fund.  The Sewer Fund, and the Allingtown Fire Department are 

rate cover. 

This is our monthly report which provides a narrative overview on the status of budget and 

ending revenue and expenditure estimates for the General Fund.  These 

projections are based on a myriad of assumptions, which could change as the operational 

demands of the City evolve and we continue to refine the process and methodology used.  

th this template now developed, we have a baseline of information to allow us to 

identify and adapt to monthly budget variations in a more timely and efficient manner.

have continued to enhance our monitoring and analytical method

which have resulted in more accurate estimates of year-end expectations.  Consequently, you 

will notice some variations in estimates from last month’s report. 

Expenditures to date are tracking significantly less than the percent of budget expended through 

this same fiscal period last year when factoring out the debt service and education costs.

Excluding Debt Service and Education 

Budget / Actual YTD (Exp & Enc) % Used
Remaining 

Balance

$55,128,931 $34,386,635 62.37% $20,742,296 

$52,742,134 $37,462,658 71.03% $15,279,476 

expenditure in FY18 was the health insurance premiums account, 

which exceeded it’s budget appropriation by approximately $1.74M last fiscal year.  This 

account was increased by $1.95M in FY19 and the current budget appropriation of $9.9M was 

sulting.  This account is tracking at a spending percent of 

% for the same period in FY18. 

 of FY19 

ebruary 28, 2019 

which includes the General Fund.  The Sewer Fund, and the Allingtown Fire Department are 

This is our monthly report which provides a narrative overview on the status of budget and 

ending revenue and expenditure estimates for the General Fund.  These 

projections are based on a myriad of assumptions, which could change as the operational 

demands of the City evolve and we continue to refine the process and methodology used.  

th this template now developed, we have a baseline of information to allow us to 

identify and adapt to monthly budget variations in a more timely and efficient manner. 

have continued to enhance our monitoring and analytical methods 

end expectations.  Consequently, you 

the percent of budget expended through 

this same fiscal period last year when factoring out the debt service and education costs. 

Remaining 

Balance

$20,742,296 

$15,279,476 
 

e in FY18 was the health insurance premiums account, 

which exceeded it’s budget appropriation by approximately $1.74M last fiscal year.  This 

and the current budget appropriation of $9.9M was 

sulting.  This account is tracking at a spending percent of 89.67% 



Page 3  

 

Overall the City’s operating budget expenditures continue to trending at or below budget, with a 

few minor exceptions.  As mentioned previously, the Public Works trash/recycling collection 

contract is expected to exceed our budget appropriation by approximately $190k.  This budget 

line item was developed with the expectation of initiating changes in our trash/recyling 

collection program.  These initiatives will be vigorously pursued and will hopefully be realized 

in the near future, although not in time to address this shortfall.  Additionally the tipping fee on 

disposal of recycling material has increased from $0 per ton to approximately $65 per ton, an 

estimated unbudgeted cost of $97k. 

 

Correspondingly, we continue to project the Police Department to under expend it’s budget by 

approximately $405k due to savings realized from a number of vacant positions, overstated 

salaries built into the FY19 budget, and a reimbursement from the Board of Education for public 

safety services provided to the schools. 

 

Further, a significant under expenditure of $1.9M is projected in the contingency fund which was 

budgeted at $2,587,041.  As you may recall, the contingency account consists of two discreet 

sections; $837,041 of which $402k was unassigned and the balance designated for specific 

categories of expense.  The second section of this account, $1,750,000 was designated as a 

reserve for deficit reduction from prior year’s budgets.  As their was in fact no deficit this 

$1,750,000 will not needed.  We recognize that use of these funds will require MARB 

authorization, but we would like to discuss integration of the available proceeds to fund deficits 

elsewhere and consider establishing a reserve account where appropriate. 

 

To summarize the projected estimated expenditures for FY19, at this moment–in-time City’s 

General Fund, assuming the Board of Education does not exceed their budget appropriation.  The 

estimated under spending is $2,198,074 or $448,074 net of the $1,750,000 designated for deficit 

reduction. 

  



Page 4  

 

 

B. Revenues 

 

There is a timing anomoly when comparing revenues through February of FY18 with revenues 

through February of FY19 that distort the true picture 

Budget / Actual YTD Collected % Collected
Remaining 

Balance

FY19 $164,303,202 $126,971,700 77.28% $37,331,502 

FY18 $156,471,902 $126,420,678 80.79% $30,051,224 
 

 

Normalized Revenue Chart 

Budget / Actual YTD Collected % Collected
Remaining 

Balance

FY19
1 $156,303,202 $126,971,700 81.23% $29,331,502 

FY18
2 $156,471,902 $125,373,545 80.13% $31,098,357 

 
  1 FY 19 Full Year excludes $8,000,000 expected MARB funds 

  2 FY18 YTD collected excludes $1,047,133 Lien sale proceeds 

 

In the Normalized Revenue chart shown above adjustments were made to remove anomolies and 

allow an “apples to apples” comparison.  The full year FY19 budget amount was reduced by 

$8M to remove the extraordinary funding expected from MARB.  TheYTD collected amounts in  

FY18 were reduced by $1.05M as these lien sales will occur later this year.  These adjustments 

result in letting us compare YOY revenues on a level playing field. 

 

As you know the second MARB payment of $8,000,000 is scheduled for installment 

disbursements later this year, contingent upon the conditions set forth in the memorandum of 

agreement between the State and the City.  These revenue predictions assume receipt of this 

revenue. 

 

Our current analysis projects revenue estimates exceeding the revenue budget appropriation of 

$164,303,226 by $1,364,374.  The variances between the budgeted amount, the projected 

revenue estimate and the associated variances are detailed on the corresponding revenue report, 

and some of the more significant positive variances continue to be the first three listed and the 

recent addition of the sale of City owned property: 

 

1. Property Taxes – projected to exceed budget by approximately $540,000.  This is based 
on the continued aggressive collections efforts of the Tax Office and a planned tax lien 
sale in the spring of 2019 as stated above.  During the past few fiscal years the City has 
conducted very successful tax lien sales in the fall to provide needed cash flow, however, 
the preferred time is in the spring as it is more efficient in limiting the number of deficit 
accounts. 



Page 5  

 

2. Investment Income – projected to exceed the revenue appropriation by approximately 
$195,000 based on the City’s favorable cash flow balance due in large measure to the 
proceeds from the $17,040,000 deficit bond financing last fiscal year. 

3. Parking Tags – projected to exceed the revenue appropriation by $95,000 due to the 
aggressive tagging program conducted by the City and the collection efforts of the Police 
Department. 

4. Sale of Property – has generated $298,807 in revenue while there was nothing budgeted 
to this line item. 

As you will note in the Mayor’s expected April 1st correspondence on the “Sale of Fixed 
Assets”, the City has conducted a “Request for Proposal” for the sale of two abandoned 
elementary schools, which is expected to generate additional revenues not included in 
these projections. 

C.  Summary 

At this moment in time the expenditure portion of the budget is expected to be favorable by 
$2,198,074 or approximately $448,074 net of the $1,750,000 for deficit reduction that is likely 
not needed for that purpose.  Additionally the revenue portion of the budget is projected to 
exceed budget by approximately $1,364,374 (assuming receipt of MARB funds and a succesfull 
Lien Sale), the total General Fund budget is projecting a moderate but positive fiscal year end 
result of operations. 
 
We are more optimistic about our projections as our analytical tools and techniques have been 
enhanced and we are farther into the fiscal year.  We have exercised a very conservative 
approach in developing these estimates and hope that our year-end results exceed expectations. 



CITY OF WEST HAVEN Variances favorable/(unfavorable)

DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURES - FY19

February 2019

Department FY19 Adopted FY19 Revised

Feb YTD 

Actual

Feb YTD 

% Budget

FY18 YTD 

% Actual

FY19 

Projected ∆ to Budget

100 City Council 88,982          88,982          56,927          64.0% 63.4% 89,702          (720)          

105 Mayor 317,111        317,111        210,391        66.3% 75.4% 301,997        15,114      

110 Corporation Counsel 450,868        450,868        244,759        54.3% 71.0% 450,868        -                

115 Personnel Department 170,585        170,585        106,299        62.3% 64.9% 163,436        7,149        

120 Telephone Administration 315,336        315,336        372,833        118.2% 57.8% 459,645        (144,309)   

125 City Clerk 298,198        298,198        197,413        66.2% 68.3% 299,471        (1,273)       

130 Registrar Of Voters 140,525        140,525        112,210        79.9% 71.6% 143,318        (2,793)       

165 Probate Court 8,020            8,020            4,412            55.0% 63.1% 6,796            1,224        

190 Planning & Development 962,385        962,385        577,703        60.0% 68.2% 915,114        47,271      

Central Government Total 2,752,010     2,752,010     1,882,945     68.4% 67.5% 2,830,346     (78,336)     

200 Treasurer 7,600            7,600            5,067            66.7% 66.7% 7,600            -                

210 Comptroller 972,571        972,571        656,394        67.5% 62.2% 1,031,728     (59,157)     

220 Central Services 731,403        731,403        550,497        75.3% 83.1% 746,261        (14,858)     

230 Assessment 451,157        451,157        272,150        60.3% 63.2% 440,474        10,683      

240 Tax Collector 431,604        431,604        249,194        57.7% 64.6% 405,721        25,883      

Finance Total 2,594,335     2,594,335     1,733,302     66.8% 68.6% 2,631,784     (37,449)     

300 Emergency Report System D 1,838,583     1,838,583     970,945        52.8% 57.4% 1,841,541     (2,958)       

310 Police Department 13,623,541   13,623,541   8,603,853     63.2% 67.2% 13,218,053   405,488    

320 Animal Control 283,366        283,366        171,837        60.6% 68.6% 278,346        5,020        

330 Civil Preparedness 14,198          14,198          6,000            42.3% 50.0% 12,000          2,198        

Public Service Total 15,759,688   15,759,688   9,752,636     61.9% 66.0% 15,349,941   409,747    

400 Public Works Administration 597,958        597,958        243,735        40.8% 73.4% 586,998        10,960      

410 Engineering 189,311        189,311        74,290          39.2% 69.9% 140,766        48,545      

440 Central Garage 1,280,901     1,280,901     685,809        53.5% 67.1% 1,275,169     5,732        

450 Solid Waste 2,944,900     2,944,900     2,015,899     68.5% 100.8% 3,099,630     (154,730)   

460 Building & Ground Maintenance 1,221,681     1,221,681     720,413        59.0% 65.6% 1,187,275     34,406      

470 Highways & Parks 4,033,581     4,033,581     2,261,858     56.1% 68.3% 4,004,310     29,272      

Public Works Total 10,268,332   10,268,332   6,002,003     58.5% 77.6% 10,294,147   (25,815)     

500 Human Resources 282,237        282,237        159,811        56.6% 65.1% 270,747        11,490      

510 Elderly Services 487,745        487,745        309,627        63.5% 54.8% 474,744        13,001      

520 Parks & Recreation 889,252        889,252        539,559        60.7% 66.5% 888,590        662           

530 Health Department 354,970        354,970        210,990        59.4% 67.5% 352,861        2,109        

Health & Human Services Total 2,014,204     2,014,204     1,219,986     60.6% 63.8% 1,986,942     27,262      

600 Library 1,521,000     1,521,000     1,140,750     75.0% 75.0% 1,521,000     -                

800 City Insurance 825,977        825,977        621,075        75.2% 72.9% 825,977        -                

810 Employee Benefits 16,761,500   16,761,500   11,611,988   69.3% 73.1% 16,761,500   -                

820 Debt Service 19,213,849   19,213,849   18,132,450   94.4% 64.5% 19,213,849   -                

830 C-Med 44,844          44,844          42,179          94.1% 100.0% 42,179          2,665        

900 Unallocated Expenses 2,587,041     2,587,041     379,772        14.7% 73.9% 687,041        1,900,000 

Other Total 40,954,211   40,954,211   31,928,213   78.0% 69.1% 39,051,546   1,902,665 

Total City Departments 74,342,780   74,342,780   52,519,085   70.6% 69.4% 72,144,706   2,198,074 

Board of Education 89,960,421   89,960,421   55,844,964   62.1% 63.1% 89,960,421   -                

Total General Fund Expenses 164,303,201 164,303,201 108,364,049 66.0% 65.9% 162,105,127 2,198,074 

Note : YTD actuals include encumbrances

Page 6



CITY OF WEST HAVEN
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURES - FY18

February 2019

Department FY18 Budget FY 18 Actual Feb YTD FY18

Feb YTD % 

FY18 Act

100 City Council 110,356         101,695         64,432           63.4%

105 Mayor 345,581         324,962         244,978         75.4%

110 Corporation Counsel 627,662         590,209         419,062         71.0%

115 Personnel Department 173,968         169,981         110,337         64.9%

120 Telephone Administration 329,811         529,436         306,206         57.8%

125 City Clerk 300,330         316,197         215,868         68.3%

130 Registrar Of Voters 156,678         140,552         100,659         71.6%

165 Probate Court 14,520           10,406           6,566             63.1%

190 Planning & Development 1,018,148      1,004,758      684,868         68.2%

Central Government Total 3,077,054      3,188,196      2,152,974      67.5%

200 Treasurer 7,600             7,600             5,066             66.7%

210 Comptroller 1,147,481      1,025,542      638,139         62.2%

220 Central Services 828,559         734,502         610,488         83.1%

230 Assessment 443,121         440,315         278,477         63.2%

240 Tax Collector 413,409         424,045         273,878         64.6%

Finance Total 2,840,170      2,632,003      1,806,047      68.6%

300 Emergency Report System D 1,877,190      1,921,004      1,102,029      57.4%

310 Police Department 14,244,522    13,288,118    8,932,870      67.2%

320 Animal Control 307,474         292,458         200,646         68.6%

330 Civil Preparedness 16,512           12,000           6,000             50.0%

Public Service Total 16,445,698    15,513,580    10,241,546    66.0%

400 Public Works Administration 605,279         588,978         432,152         73.4%

410 Engineering 213,065         238,081         166,454         69.9%

440 Central Garage 1,325,093      1,123,146      753,125         67.1%

450 Solid Waste 3,128,401      3,016,565      3,040,853      100.8%

460 Building & Ground Maintenance 1,417,729      1,296,012      850,500         65.6%

470 Highways & Parks 4,164,272      4,137,169      2,824,160      68.3%

Public Works Total 10,853,839    10,399,951    8,067,245      77.6%

500 Human Resources 327,190         298,070         194,028         65.1%

510 Elderly Services 497,629         471,310         258,173         54.8%

520 Parks & Recreation 941,409         885,004         588,090         66.5%

530 Health Department 374,777         391,484         264,252         67.5%

Health & Human Services Total 2,141,005      2,045,868      1,304,543      63.8%

600 Library 1,596,000      1,596,000      1,197,000      75.0%

800 City Insurance 775,977         629,482         458,930         72.9%

810 Employee Benefits 14,963,022    16,473,080    12,034,507    73.1%

820 Debt Service 19,769,411    17,401,021    11,220,066    64.5%

830 C-Med 44,844           18,316           18,316           100.0%

900 Unallocated Expenses 636,239         245,658         181,550         73.9%

Other Total 37,785,493    36,363,558    25,110,369    69.1%

Total City Departments 73,143,259    70,143,155    48,682,723    69.4%

Board of Education 89,626,581    89,594,144    56,534,673    63.1%

Total General Fund Expenses 162,769,840  159,737,299  105,217,397  65.9%

Page 7



CITY OF WEST HAVEN Variances favorable/(unfavorable)

FY19 REVENUE DETAIL REPORT

February 2019

Account Description FY19 Adopted FY19 Revised

Feb YTD 

Actual

Feb YTD % 

Collected

FY18 YTD % 

Collected

Projected 

FY19 ∆ to Budget

Tax Levy - Current Year 92,760,707     92,760,707     91,097,683     98.2% 97.7% 92,856,702     95,995            

Motor Vehicle Supplement 1,200,000       1,200,000       1,128,881       94.1% 78.9% 1,253,966       53,966            

Tax Levy - Prior Years 400,000          400,000          163,282          40.8% 49.2% 617,595          217,595          

Tax Levy - Suspense 100,000          100,000          81,560            81.6% 63.3% 129,012          29,012            

Tax Interest - Current Year 450,000          450,000          209,833          46.6% 50.2% 484,144          34,144            

Tax Interest - Prior Years 210,000          210,000          113,745          54.2% 49.2% 265,387          55,387            

Tax Interest - Suspense 105,000          105,000          90,370            86.1% 58.2% 159,312          54,312            

Prior Year Tax Lien Sale 1,700,000       1,700,000       -                      0.0% 60.8% 1,700,000       -                      

Non Current Per. Prop. Tax 100,000          100,000          -                      0.0% n/a 100,000          -                      

41 Property Taxes 97,025,707     97,025,707     92,885,353     95.7% 95.8% 97,566,118     540,411          

Building Permits 1,225,000       1,225,000       879,542          71.8% 36.1% 1,400,006       175,006          

Electrical Permits 160,000          160,000          152,224          95.1% 48.2% 220,000          60,000            

Zoning Permits 87,000            87,000            81,222            93.4% 60.6% 115,000          28,000            

Health Licenses 80,000            80,000            38,747            48.4% 16.7% 80,000            -                      

Plumbing & Heating Permits 210,000          210,000          65,281            31.1% 48.4% 85,000            (125,000)        

Police & Protection Licenses 20,000            20,000            18,670            93.4% 69.9% 24,000            4,000              

Animal Licenses 13,000            13,000            5,150              39.6% 28.8% 15,000            2,000              

Excavation Permits 7,000              7,000              6,910              98.7% 65.3% 10,000            3,000              

City Clerk Fees 7,100              7,100              3,665              51.6% 59.7% 6,000              (1,100)             

Dog Pound Releases 2,000              2,000              1,872              93.6% -71.9% 2,800              800                 

Marriage Licenses 3,000              3,000              2,402              80.1% 62.6% 3,500              500                 

Sporting Licenses 200                 200                 149                 74.5% 158.3% 200                 -                      

Alcoholic Beverage License 150                 150                 920                 613.3% 55.4% 1,120              970                 

42 Licenses & Permits 1,814,450       1,814,450       1,256,754       69.3% 39.0% 1,962,626       148,176          

Bldg Code Violations -                      -                      13,982            n/a 1.7% 25,000            25,000            

Fines And Penalties 25,000            25,000            13,282            53.1% 9.7% 25,000            -                      

Parking Tags 125,000          125,000          154,426          123.5% 68.7% 220,000          95,000            

43 Fines And Penalties 150,000          150,000          181,691          121.1% 52.3% 270,000          120,000          

Investment Income 55,000            55,000            211,254          384.1% 46.3% 250,000          195,000          

Rent from City Facilities 25,000            25,000            12,750            51.0% 125.0% 25,000            -                      

44 Revenue From Use Of Money 80,000            80,000            224,004          280.0% 52.0% 275,000          195,000          

Educational Cost Sharing 45,140,487     45,140,487     22,107,362     49.0% 51.2% 45,140,487     -                      

Health Services 60,000            60,000            66,528            110.9% 100.0% 70,000            10,000            

Pilot-Colleges & Hospitals 5,527,988       5,527,988       5,527,988       100.0% 100.0% 5,527,988       -                      

Muni Revenue Sharing 147,516          147,516          -                      0.0% 0.0% 147,516          -                      

Prop Tax Relief - Elderly &  Disabl -                      -                      4,000              n/a 100.0% 4,000              4,000              

Prop Tax Relief - Total Disab 5,370              5,370              5,111              95.2% 100.0% 5,370              -                      

Prop Tax Relief - Veterans 118,373          118,373          130,003          109.8% 100.0% 130,003          11,630            

Pilot-State Owned Property 181,198          181,198          181,198          100.0% n/a 181,198          -                      

Mashentucket Pequot Grant 807,097          807,097          269,032          33.3% 33.3% 807,097          -                      

Town Aid Road 617,602          617,602          308,002          49.9% 50.0% 616,005          (1,597)             

State Miscellaneous Grants 122,000          122,000          90,401            74.1% 51.7% 122,000          -                      

Telephone Access Grant 117,044          117,044          -                      0.0% 0.0% 106,500          (10,544)           

SCCRWA-Pilot Grant 296,330          296,330          301,396          101.7% 100.0% 301,396          5,066              

45 Fed/State Grants 53,141,005     53,141,005     28,991,022     54.6% 56.1% 53,159,560     18,555            

Record Legal Instrument Fees 625,000          625,000          484,177          77.5% 62.4% 710,000          85,000            

Miscellaneous - Parks & Recreation 340,000          340,000          126,840          37.3% 37.4% 345,000          5,000              

Miscellaneous - General Gov't 90,000            90,000            42,431            47.1% 73.7% 65,000            (25,000)           

Miscellaneous - Public Works 37,059            37,059            959                 2.6% 1.3% 37,819            760                 

Police Charges 15,000            15,000            5,808              38.7% 65.6% 10,000            (5,000)             

All Other Public Works 2,000              2,000              1,234              61.7% 53.9% 2,000              -                      

Health Fees -                      -                      25                   n/a 100.0% 25                   25                   

Sundry - Other 150                 150                 -                      0.0% n/a -                      (150)                

46 Charges For Services 1,109,209       1,109,209       661,474          59.6% 53.5% 1,169,844       60,635            

Fire Dept Share of ERS 804,083          804,083          335,147          41.7% 42.4% 804,083          -                      

Yale Contribution 422,651          422,651          437,317          103.5% 100.0% 437,317          14,666            

Sale of Property -                      -                      298,807          n/a 68.8% 298,807          298,807          

Miscellaneous Revenue 210,000          210,000          66,901            31.9% 79.6% 100,000          (110,000)        

Pilot - Housing Authority 141,000          141,000          148,751          105.5% 100.0% 148,751          7,751              

Parking Meter Revenue 20,000            20,000            51,962            259.8% 65.1% 70,000            50,000            

Sewer Fee Collection Expenses 48,397            48,397            55,166            114.0% 100.0% 55,166            6,769              

Quigley/Yale Parking 40,000            40,000            29,069            72.7% 66.7% 43,603            3,603              

Insurance Reimbursement 20,000            20,000            20,454            102.3% 66.8% 23,000            3,000              

Organic Recycling Compost 13,000            13,000            14,128            108.7% 100.0% 20,000            7,000              

47 Other Revenues 1,719,131       1,719,131       1,457,702       84.8% 68.5% 2,000,728       281,597          

Residual Equity Transfers In 200,000          200,000          -                      0.0% 0.0% 200,000          -                      

Transfer From Sewer Oper Fund 1,063,700       1,063,700       1,063,700       100.0% 100.0% 1,063,700       -                      

48 Other Financing Sources 1,263,700       1,263,700       1,063,700       84.2% 87.2% 1,263,700       -                      

Total Operational Revenue 156,303,202  156,303,202  126,721,700  81.1% 80.7% 157,667,576  1,364,374       

Bond Proceeds -                      -                      -                      n/a 100.0% -                      -                      

MARB 8,000,000       8,000,000       250,000          3.1% n/a 8,000,000       -                      

Total General Fund Revenues 164,303,202  164,303,202  126,971,700  77.3% 80.8% 165,667,576  1,364,374       

Page 8



CITY OF WEST HAVEN
FY18 REVENUE DETAIL REPORT

February 2019

Account Description FY18 Budget FY18 Actual Feb YTD FY18

Feb YTD % 

Collected

Tax Levy - Current Year 90,263,234    90,279,008    88,246,550    97.7%

Motor Vehicle Supplement 947,915         1,424,633      1,124,208      78.9%

Tax Levy - Prior Years 400,000         1,001,564      492,930         49.2%

Tax Levy - Suspense 100,000         137,605         87,133           63.3%

Tax Interest - Current Year 575,000         474,170         238,250         50.2%

Tax Interest - Prior Years 270,000         365,490         179,918         49.2%

Tax Interest - Suspense 150,000         166,348         96,746           58.2%

Prior Year Tax Lien Sale 1,700,000      1,723,419      1,047,133      60.8%

41 Property Taxes 94,406,149    95,572,237    91,512,867    95.8%

Building Permits 1,025,000      1,517,792      548,153         36.1%

Electrical Permits 150,000         177,901         85,752           48.2%

Zoning Permits 87,000           120,654         73,175           60.6%

Health Licenses 80,000           64,728           10,810           16.7%

Plumbing & Heating Permits 215,000         63,776           30,851           48.4%

Police & Protection Licenses 20,000           17,837           12,473           69.9%

Animal Licenses 13,000           16,455           4,740             28.8%

Excavation Permits 7,000             5,570             3,635             65.3%

City Clerk Fees 7,100             6,319             3,772             59.7%

Dog Pound Releases 4,000             (2,144)            1,541             -71.9%

Marriage Licenses 3,000             2,420             1,515             62.6%

Sporting Licenses 200                276                437                158.3%

Alcoholic Beverage License 150                148                82                  55.4%

42 Licenses & Permits 1,611,450      1,991,732      776,935         39.0%

Bldg Code Violations -                     31,824           530                1.7%

Fines And Penalties 25,000           52,514           5,094             9.7%

Parking Tags 84,426           233,873         160,667         68.7%

43 Fines And Penalties 109,426         318,210         166,290         52.3%

Investment Income 5,000             193,375         89,621           46.3%

Rent from City Facilities 25,000           15,000           18,750           125.0%

44 Revenue From Use Of Money 30,000           208,375         108,371         52.0%

Educational Cost Sharing 41,558,928    45,003,667    23,061,776    51.2%

Special Education 8,458,199      -                     -                     n/a

Health Services 60,000           74,225           74,225           100.0%

Pilot-Colleges & Hospitals 5,461,372      5,412,671      5,412,671      100.0%

MRSA - Sales Tax Sharing 1,614,877      -                     -                     n/a

MRSA - Select Pilot 339,563         -                     -                     n/a

Muni Revenue Sharing -                     147,516         -                     0.0%

Prop Tax Relief - Elderly &  Disabl 400,000         6,000             6,000             100.0%

Prop Tax Relief - Total Disab 5,977             5,370             5,370             100.0%

Prop Tax Relief - Veterans 101,000         133,950         133,950         100.0%

Pilot-State Owned Property 63,554           -                     -                     n/a

Mashentucket Pequot Grant 951,618         951,618         317,206         33.3%

Town Aid Road 616,673         617,602         308,801         50.0%

State Miscellaneous Grants 122,000         177,681         91,874           51.7%

Telephone Access Grant 100,373         99,121           -                     0.0%

SCCRWA-Pilot Grant 296,330         305,665         305,665         100.0%

MRSA - Motor Vehichle/MV Cap 2,255,190      -                     -                     n/a

45 Fed/State Grants 62,405,654    52,935,087    29,717,538    56.1%

Record Legal Instrument Fees 625,000         660,795         412,179         62.4%

Miscellaneous - Parks & Recreation 360,000         348,588         130,235         37.4%

Miscellaneous - General Gov't 90,000           79,910           58,877           73.7%

Miscellaneous - Public Works 38,578           37,819           482                1.3%

Police Charges 10,000           13,988           9,182             65.6%

All Other Public Works 4,000             2,330             1,256             53.9%

Health Fees -                     20                  20                  100.0%

Sundry - Other 150                -                     -                     n/a

46 Charges For Services 1,127,728      1,143,450      612,231         53.5%

Fire Dept Share of ERS 791,955         810,373         343,686         42.4%

Yale Contribution 413,060         427,290         427,290         100.0%

Sale of Property -                     199,200         137,000         68.8%

Miscellaneous Revenue 215,000         159,477         126,933         79.6%

Pilot - Housing Authority 141,000         141,536         141,536         100.0%

Parking Meter Revenue 20,000           72,042           46,893           65.1%

Sewer Fee Collection Expenses 48,397           55,166           55,166           100.0%

Quigley/Yale Parking 40,000           43,603           29,069           66.7%

Insurance Reimbursement 20,000           9,411             6,291             66.8%

Organic Recycling Compost 18,605           370                370                100.0%

47 Other Revenues 1,708,017      1,918,468      1,314,234      68.5%

Residual Equity Transfers In 200,000         172,130         -                     0.0%

Transfer From Sewer Oper Fund 1,171,416      1,171,416      1,171,416      100.0%

48 Other Financing Sources 1,371,416      1,343,546      1,171,416      87.2%

Total Operational Revenue 162,769,840  155,431,106  125,379,882  80.7%

Bond Proceeds -                     1,040,796      1,040,796      100.0%

Total General Fund Revenues 162,769,840  156,471,902  126,420,678  80.8%

Page 9



CITY OF WEST HAVEN
PROPERTY TAX COLLECTIONS REPORT

February 2019

Tax Levy - Current Year Tax Levy - Prior Years Interest Prior Year Tax Lien Sale Total Collections

Month FY18 FY19 FY18 FY19 FY18 FY19 FY18 FY19 FY18 FY19

July 40,636,486    36,896,969    14,397           32,266           55,864           36,845           -                     -                     40,706,747    36,966,079    

August 5,734,471      11,747,612    73,857           6,353             90,136           79,005           -                     -                     5,898,463      11,832,970    

September 568,217         883,587         68,395           24,425           58,821           72,392           -                     -                     695,433         980,404         

October 822,118         493,826         42,873           59,260           59,668           42,923           -                     -                     924,658         596,009         

November 558,796         548,481         75,895           11,266           105,278         33,487           1,047,133      -                     1,787,102      593,235         

December 9,739,833      5,353,068      28,737           37,588           54,646           56,452           -                     -                     9,823,216      5,447,108      

January 24,813,164    29,647,432    101,369         19,029           64,391           51,888           -                     -                     24,978,924    29,718,350    

February 6,497,672      6,655,587      87,409           (26,904)          113,242         122,514         -                     -                     6,698,323      6,751,198      

March 1,418,868      -                     106,971         -                     142,497         -                     -                     -                     1,668,337      -                     

April 875,085         -                     192,068         -                     189,572         -                     178,276         -                     1,435,001      -                     

May 263,825         -                     102,075         -                     101,609         -                     -                     -                     467,509         -                     

June (224,895)        -                     107,519         -                     107,888         -                     498,011         -                     488,523         -                     

Total Collections 91,703,641    92,226,563    1,001,564      163,282         1,143,613      495,507         1,723,419      -                     95,572,237    92,885,353    

February YTD 89,370,758    92,226,563    492,930         163,282         602,047         495,507         1,047,133      -                     91,512,867    92,885,353    

Projected 91,703,641    94,210,668    1,001,564      617,595         1,143,613      1,037,855      1,723,419      1,700,000      95,572,237    97,566,118    

% Total 97.46% 97.89% 49.22% 26.44% 52.64% 47.74% 60.76% 0.00% 95.75% 95.20%

Excl. Lien Sales 96.40% 96.89%

Page 10



CITY OF WEST HAVEN
SUB CATEGORY EXPENDITURE REPORT

February 2019

FY19 Adopted FY19 Revised Feb YTD Actual

Feb YTD % 

Budget

Regular Wages 20,470,663      20,470,663      12,522,848      61.2%

Part Time 891,965           891,965           554,045           62.1%

Overtime 1,909,700        1,909,700        1,386,985        72.6%

Longevity 654,950           654,950           451,014           68.9%

Fringe Reimbursements 1,260,000        1,260,000        787,347           62.5%

Other Personnel Services 358,984           358,984           155,633           43.4%

51 Personnel Services 25,546,262      25,546,262      15,857,872      62.1%

Advertising 48,595             48,595             28,356             58.4%

Building Maintenance 57,350             57,350             39,196             68.3%

Copier Machine & Rental 45,000             45,000             23,894             53.1%

Electricity 640,000           640,000           537,646           84.0%

Equipment Repair and Maintenance 56,250             56,250             55,663             99.0%

Financial Services 175,000           175,000           158,415           90.5%

Legal Services 150,000           150,000           49,676             33.1%

Maintenance Services 585,144           585,144           462,621           79.1%

Town Aid Road & Tree Manitenance 484,000           484,000           185,857           38.4%

Training 44,468             44,468             25,219             56.7%

Trash Pickup, Tip Fees & Recycling 2,914,500        2,914,500        2,005,600        68.8%

Travel 26,100             26,100             10,564             40.5%

Uniforms 191,308           191,308           162,250           84.8%

Other Contractual Services 1,131,814        1,131,814        682,631           60.3%

52 Contractual Services 6,549,529        6,549,529        4,427,586        67.6%

Motor Vehicle Parts 245,000           245,000           175,562           71.7%

Construction Supplies 70,000             70,000             18,322             26.2%

Office Supplies 62,000             62,000             44,670             72.0%

Other Supplies & Materials 260,748           260,748           91,819             35.2%

53 Supplies & Materials 637,748           637,748           330,373           51.8%

Health & General Liability Insurance 11,550,377      11,550,377      7,982,091        69.1%

FICA 1,412,139        1,412,139        896,213           63.5%

Pension 3,200,140        3,200,140        2,236,784        69.9%

Workers Compensation 1,500,000        1,500,000        1,005,360        67.0%

Debt Service 18,497,149      18,497,149      17,654,533      95.4%

Debt Service (Water Purification) 716,700           716,700           477,917           66.7%

Other Fixed Charges 292,869           292,869           140,761           48.1%

54 Fixed Charges 37,169,374      37,169,374      30,393,660      81.8%

Capital Outlay 92,890             92,890             30,106             32.4%

55 Capital Outlay 92,890             92,890             30,106             32.4%

Contingency Services 250,000           250,000           250,000           100.0%

Other Contingency 628,491           628,491           152,275           24.2%

56 Other/Contingency 878,491           878,491           402,275           45.8%

Fuel 520,000           520,000           214,877           41.3%

Telephone 509,486           509,486           496,755           97.5%

Gas Heat 689,000           689,000           365,580           53.1%

Deficit Reduction 1,750,000        1,750,000        -                       0.0%

Total City Departments 74,342,780      74,342,780      52,519,085      70.6%

Board of Education 89,960,421      89,960,421      55,844,964      62.1%

Total General Fund Expenses 164,303,201    164,303,201    108,364,049    66.0%

Note : YTD actuals include encumbrances

Page 11



CITY OF WEST HAVEN
Summary of Revenues and Expenditures

February 2019

FY19 Adopted

FY19  

Revised

Feb YTD 

Actual

Feb YTD 

% Budget FY18 Actual

Feb YTD 

Actual  % PY Act

FY19 

Projected ∆ to Budget

Feb YTD 

% Fcst

REVENUE

41 Property Taxes 95,325,707   95,325,707   92,885,353   97.4% 93,848,818   90,465,734   96.4% 95,866,118   540,411      96.9%

41 Property Taxes (Lien Sale) 1,700,000     1,700,000     -                    0.0% 1,723,419     1,047,133     60.8% 1,700,000     -                  0.0%

42 Licenses & Permits 1,814,450     1,814,450     1,256,754     69.3% 1,991,732     776,935        39.0% 1,962,626     148,176      64.0%

43 Fines And Penalties 150,000        150,000        181,691        121.1% 318,210        166,290        52.3% 270,000        120,000      67.3%

44 Revenue From Use Of Money 80,000          80,000          224,004        280.0% 208,375        108,371        52.0% 275,000        195,000      81.5%

45 Fed/State Grants - Non MARB 53,141,005   53,141,005   28,991,022   54.6% 52,935,087   29,717,538   56.1% 53,159,560   18,555        54.5%

46 Charges For Services 1,109,209     1,109,209     661,474        59.6% 1,143,450     612,231        53.5% 1,169,844     60,635        56.5%

47 Other Revenues 1,719,131     1,719,131     1,457,702     84.8% 1,918,468     1,314,234     68.5% 2,000,728     281,597      72.9%

48 Other Financing Sources 1,263,700     1,263,700     1,063,700     84.2% 1,343,546     1,171,416     87.2% 1,263,700     -                  84.2%

Total Operational Revenues 156,303,202 156,303,202 126,721,700 81.1% 155,431,106 125,379,882 80.7% 157,667,576 1,364,374   80.4%

Operational Rev. Excluding Lien Sales 154,603,202   154,603,202   126,721,700   82.0% 153,707,686   124,332,749   80.9% 155,967,576   1,364,374     81.2%

48 Bond Proceeds -                    -                    -                    n/a 1,040,796     1,040,796     100.0% -                    -                  n/a

45 Fed/State Grants - MARB 8,000,000     8,000,000     250,000        3.1% -                    -                    n/a 8,000,000     -                  3.1%

Total Revenue 164,303,202 164,303,202 126,971,700 77.3% 156,471,902 126,420,678 80.8% 165,667,576 1,364,374   76.6%

EXPENDITURES

Central Government 2,752,010     2,752,010     1,882,945     68.4% 3,188,196     2,152,974     67.5% 2,830,346     (78,336)       66.5%

Finance 2,594,335     2,594,335     1,733,302     66.8% 2,632,003     1,806,047     68.6% 2,631,784     (37,449)       65.9%

Public Service 15,759,688   15,759,688   9,752,636     61.9% 15,513,580   10,241,546   66.0% 15,349,941   409,747      63.5%

Public Works 10,268,332   10,268,332   6,002,003     58.5% 10,399,951   8,067,245     77.6% 10,294,147   (25,815)       58.3%

Health & Human Services 2,014,204     2,014,204     1,219,986     60.6% 2,045,868     1,304,543     63.8% 1,986,942     27,262        61.4%

City Insurance 825,977        825,977        621,075        75.2% 629,482        458,930        72.9% 825,977        -                  75.2%

Employee Benefits 16,761,500   16,761,500   11,611,988   69.3% 16,473,080   12,034,507   73.1% 16,761,500   -                  69.3%

Debt Service 19,213,849   19,213,849   18,132,450   94.4% 17,401,021   11,220,066   64.5% 19,213,849   -                  94.4%

Library / Other 1,565,844     1,565,844     1,182,929     75.5% 1,565,844     1,182,929     75.5% 1,563,179     2,665          75.7%

Contingency Services 250,000        250,000        250,000        100.0% -                    -                    n/a 250,000        -                  100.0%

Other Contingency 587,041        587,041        129,772        22.1% 294,130        213,937        72.7% 437,041        150,000      29.7%

Deficit Reduction 1,750,000     1,750,000     -                    0.0% -                    -                    n/a -                    1,750,000   n/a

Total City Departments 74,342,780   74,342,780   52,519,085   70.6% 70,143,155   48,682,723   69.4% 72,144,706   2,198,074   72.8%

Board of Education 89,960,421   89,960,421   55,844,964   62.1% 89,594,144   56,534,673   63.1% 89,960,421   -                  62.1%

Total Expenditures 164,303,201 164,303,201 108,364,049 66.0% 159,737,299 105,217,397 65.9% 162,105,127 2,198,074   66.8%

Surplus / (Deficit) 1                   1                   18,607,651   (3,265,397)    21,203,282   3,562,449     

Page 12



  Interoffice Memorandum

  To: Municipal Accountability Review Board

  From: Frank M. Cieplinski

  Date: 3/28/2019 

  Subject: City of West Haven Monthly Financial Report of 

     Addendum

 

 

I am transmitting an addendum to the General Fund monthly

ended February 28, 2019 to include t

Allingtown Fire Department.  Since each of their 

from the General Fund, they have separate and distinct budgets.

 

To simplify the financial status of each of these operations, the following sumaries have been 

developed. 

 

I) West Haven Sewer Fund A/O 

 

Comparison with the FY18 budget through 

 

Expenditures: 

 

Budget

FY19 $11,797,193 

FY18 $11,788,128 

 

Revenues: 

 

Budget

FY19 $11,797,193 

FY18 $11,788,128 

 

After 8 months the percentage of the budget expended is slightly und

through the same period last fiscal year (

fiscal year are tracking less than last fiscal year through the same period (

primarily because a lien sale was held in November 2017.  

sale is $152K, this year the lien sale will be held this spring.

lien sales, the revenue collections at this point last year would have been 93.37%

 

Overall the FY19 expenditures are trending below budget while the FY19 revenues are tracking 

well ahead of budget which we expect will result in a current year

Interoffice Memorandum-Office of Mayor Nancy Rossi 

: Municipal Accountability Review Board 

: Frank M. Cieplinski 

City of West Haven Monthly Financial Report of February

Addendum - Sewer Fund and Allingtown Fire Department

an addendum to the General Fund monthly financial report for the period 

to include the monthly financial reports for the City’s 

Since each of their operations is special revenue funds, segregated 

from the General Fund, they have separate and distinct budgets. 

To simplify the financial status of each of these operations, the following sumaries have been 

West Haven Sewer Fund A/O February 28, 2019 

Comparison with the FY18 budget through February 28, 2018 

YTD (Exp & Enc) % Used
Remaining 

Balance

$11,797,193 $6,743,618 57.16% $5,053,575 

$11,788,128 $7,399,465 62.77% $4,388,663 

YTD Collected % Collected
Remaining 

Balance

$11,797,193 $11,195,121 94.90% $602,072 

$11,788,128 $11,712,481 99.36% $75,647 

the percentage of the budget expended is slightly under the budget expended 

e period last fiscal year (57.16% vs 62.77%).  The revenues collected for the 

fiscal year are tracking less than last fiscal year through the same period (94.

primarily because a lien sale was held in November 2017.  The impact of last year’s

his year the lien sale will be held this spring.  Excluding the impact of the 

collections at this point last year would have been 93.37%

the FY19 expenditures are trending below budget while the FY19 revenues are tracking 

which we expect will result in a current year operating surplus

February FY19 

n Fire Department 

financial report for the period 

monthly financial reports for the City’s Sewer Fund, and 

operations is special revenue funds, segregated 

To simplify the financial status of each of these operations, the following sumaries have been 

Remaining 

Balance

$5,053,575 

$4,388,663 
 

Remaining 

Balance

$602,072 

$75,647 
 

er the budget expended 

The revenues collected for the 

.90% vs 99.36%) 

The impact of last year’s early lien 

impact of the early 

collections at this point last year would have been 93.37% 

the FY19 expenditures are trending below budget while the FY19 revenues are tracking 

operating surplus. 



 

II) Allingtown Fire Department A/O February 28, 2019 

 

Comparison with the FY18 budget through February 28, 2018 

 

Expenditures: 

 

Budget YTD (Exp & Enc) % Used
Remaining 

Balance

FY19 $6,929,850 $4,239,198 61.17% $2,690,652 

FY18 $7,203,708 $4,017,879 55.78% $3,185,829 
 

 

Revenues: 

 

Budget YTD Collected % Collected
Remaining 

Balance

FY19 $6,929,850 $7,062,254 101.91% ($132,404)

FY18 $7,203,708 $6,334,872 87.94% $868,836 
 

 

It should be noted that this budget will be amended in the near future to comply with MARB 
recommended revisions that were proposed after the fire budget was adopted.  The purpose of 
this amendment was to generate additional revenue to eliminate the negative fund balance.  To 
accomplish this, the authority was granted for the City to issue a supplemental tax bill for the 
Allingtown Fire Department District and such billing was conducted in early January.  Once the 
impact of the supplemental tax is reconciled, this budget will have to be ammended in 
accordance with conditions of the City Charter.  Please note that this is additional revenue, since 
it will be utilized to offset the estimated fund deficit will have little if any effect on the operation 
and ultimate results of this budget. 
 
At this stage, expenses are tracking as expected in spite of being slightly ahead on a percentage 
basis of last year at this time.  Correspondingly, as the above chart reflects, revenues are tracking 
well ahead of last year.  As noted above, due to the supplemental billing sent in December the 
101.91% collection rate showing for FY19 is misleading.  The amount of the supplemental 
billings were just over $400k.  Adjusting the budget target for this addition, the collection rate 
through 8 months would be at 96% which is atill accelerated against last year. 
 
Given the historically strong revenue collections, and the current year’s revenue trend and 
expenditures tracking with the budget the Fire Department should end the year with a positive 
result of operations. 



West Haven Board of Education

FY19 YTD

2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2018-19 2019-20

BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET

TUITION 7,625,938 7,646,825 7,825,938         7,968,144 7,939,386 6,793,318                      8,078,156                      

STUDENT TRANSPORTATION 5,006,321 5,266,244 5,006,321         5,274,576 5,006,321 3,224,811                      5,006,321                      

SALARIES 52,265,952 52,088,188 52,252,418      52,252,418 52,370,421 28,826,597                    52,547,521                    

OPERATION OF PLANT 3,721,339 3,645,066 3,789,181         3,552,214 3,847,829 2,722,406                      4,148,090                      

BENEFITS & FIXED CHARGES 18,099,372 16,929,343 17,681,331      17,433,268 18,215,805 12,264,100                    18,589,674                    

PURCHASED SERVICES 1,398,159 1,308,200 1,482,399         1,466,557 1,161,159 742,105                         1,161,159                      

INSTRUCTION 1,509,500 1,509,500 1,588,992         1,588,992 1,419,500 1,271,626                      1,669,500                      

TOTAL: 89,626,581 88,393,366 89,626,581      89,536,169            89,960,421                  55,844,964                    91,200,421                    



West Haven Board of Education

FY19 YTD

2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2018-19 2019-20

BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET

TUITION:

 

A01 TUITION 7,625,938 7,646,825           7,825,938 7,968,144              7,939,386 6,793,318                      8,078,156                      

7,625,938 7,646,825           7,825,938 7,968,144 7,939,386 6,793,318                      8,078,156                      



West Haven Board of Education

FY19 YTD

2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2018-19 2019-20

BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET

STUDENT TRANSPORTATION:

B04 CONTRACTED BUS SERVICE - PUBLIC 2,989,592 2,989,592           2,989,592         2,989,592              2,989,592 1,902,468                      2,989,592                      

B06 BUS SERVICE: NON-PUBLIC SCHOOLS 267,721 267,721               267,721            267,720                 267,721 170,368                         267,721                         

B08 TRANSPORTATION: REGIONAL VOC-TECH 229,575 229,575               229,575            229,575                 229,575 146,093                         229,575                         

B10 TRANSPORTATION:  REGIONAL VOC-AG 72,437 72,437                 72,437              72,600                   72,437 46,096                           72,437                           

B12 TRANSPORTATION: PHYS. HANDICAPPED 1,341,539 1,601,462           1,341,539         1,609,633              1,341,539 894,359                         1,341,539                      

B16 TRANSPORTATION - STUDENT ACTIVITIES 105,457 105,457               105,457            105,456                 105,457 65,427                           105,457                         

5,006,321 5,266,244           5,006,321         5,274,576              5,006,321                     3,224,811                      5,006,321                      



West Haven Board of Education

FY19 YTD

2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2018-19 2019-20

BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET

SALARIES:

# of Employees

C04 1 SALARY - SUPERINTENDENT 184,115            184,115               187,337            187,337                 187,337 129,694                         187,000                         

C06 1 SALARY - ASST. SUPERINTENDENTS 149,844            149,844               152,466            152,466                 152,466 105,553                         150,941                         

C07 12 SALARY - CLERICAL: CENTRAL OFFICE 581,947            581,947               541,604            541,604                 516,604 357,648                         516,604                         

C10 10 SALARY - PRINCIPALS 1,280,604        1,280,604           1,061,083         1,061,083              1,081,083 582,121                         1,109,814                      

C12 8 SALARY - ASST. PRINCIPALS 938,576            938,576               907,040            907,040                 929,234 500,356                         957,965                         

C14 11 SALARY - COORDINATORS/DIRECTORS 993,343            993,343               1,120,632         1,120,632              1,064,632 573,263                         1,093,364                      

C16 366 SALARY - CLASSROOM TEACHERS 26,741,339      26,741,339         27,001,002      27,001,002            27,356,996 14,730,690                    27,356,996                    

C18 76 SALARY - SPECIAL EDUCATION TEACHERS 5,811,512        5,811,521           5,888,294         5,888,294              5,922,487 3,189,031                      5,922,487                      

C20 SALARY - ADULT EDUCATION 150,000            150,000               150,000            150,000                 150,000 67,584                           150,000                         

C22 SALARY - HOMEBOUND 125,000            125,000               125,000            125,000                 125,000 19,816                           125,000                         

C24 48 SALARY - SPECIAL AREA TEACHERS 3,443,439        3,443,439           3,497,489         3,497,489              3,405,682 1,833,828                      3,405,682                      

C26 22 SALARY - PUPIL SERVICES 1,653,351        1,653,351           1,616,661         1,616,661              1,565,854 843,152                         1,565,854                      

C28 17 SALARY - CLERICAL:SECONDARY SCHOOLS 763,027            763,027               718,670            718,670                 694,353 480,705                         694,353                         

C30 7 SALARY - CLERICAL:ELEM. SCHOOLS 290,681            290,681               290,681            290,681                 310,681 167,289                         310,681                         

C32 SALARY - SUBSTITUTE CLERKS 30,000              30,000                 30,000              30,000                   30,000 9,173                             30,000                           

C34 SALARY - LUNCH AIDES 300,000            300,000               300,000            300,000                 300,000 210,000                         300,000                         

C36 135 SALARY - TEACHER AIDES 3,033,363        3,033,363           2,973,363         2,973,363              2,992,839 1,611,529                      2,992,839                      

C38 SALARY - PARA SUBS-INSTRUCTIONAL AIDES 105,000            105,000               105,000            105,000                 105,000 66,785                           105,000                         

C40 2 SALARY - DETACHED WORKER 98,261              98,261                 98,261              98,261                   98,261 68,027                           98,261                           

C42 SALARY - SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS/INTERNS 672,990            672,990               689,815            689,815                 689,815 319,792                         689,815                         

C44 SALARY - SEVERANCE PAY 300,000            300,000               300,000            300,000                 300,000 200,000                         392,768                         

C46 16 SALARY - SCHOOL NURSES - PUBLIC 924,877            924,877               924,877            924,877                 887,524 477,898                         887,524                         

C48 4 SALARY - SCHOOL NURSES - NON-PUBLIC 136,639            136,639               136,639            136,639                 142,639 76,806                           142,639                         

C50 SALARY - SCHOOL PHYSICIAN 50,000              -                       -                    -                          -                                -                                  -                                  

C54 SALARY - BUS AIDES 25,000              -                       -                    -                          -                                -                                  -                                  

C58 39 SALARY - CUSTODIANS 1,985,336        1,985,336           1,937,336         1,937,336              1,918,019 1,327,859                      1,918,019                      

C60 SALARY - SUBSTITUTE CUSTODIANS 105,000            105,000               105,000            105,000                 105,000 48,500                           105,000                         

C62 SALARY - OVERTIME : CUSTODIANS 79,638              79,638                 79,638              79,638                   79,638 35,500                           79,638                           

C64 14 SALARY - MAINTENANCE 880,876            880,876               882,336            882,336                 827,083 572,596                         827,083                         

C66 SALARY-  OVERTIME : MAINTENANCE 60,799              60,799                 60,799              60,799                   60,799 30,555                           60,799                           

C68 SALARY - STUDENT ACTIVITY ADVISORS 154,978            90,354                 154,978            154,978                 154,978 77,489                           154,978                         

C70 SALARY - ATHLETIC COACHES 200,417            162,268               200,417            200,417                 200,417 101,999                         200,417                         

C72 SALARY - COMMUNITY SERVICE: CUSTODIAL 16,000              16,000                 16,000              16,000                   16,000 11,360                           16,000                           

52,265,952 52,088,188         52,252,418 52,252,418 52,370,421 28,826,597                    52,547,521                    



West Haven Board of Education

FY19 YTD

2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2018-19 2019-20

BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET

OPERATION OF PLANT:

D02 RECYCLING 20,000 -                       -                    -                          -                                -                                  -                                  

D04 ELECTRICITY 981,330 960,575               1,030,397         1,010,758              1,058,733 700,541                         1,087,848                      

D06 NATURAL GAS 1,000 -                       -                    -                          -                                -                                  -                                  

D08 WATER 98,431 98,431                 101,138            86,227                   103,919 61,554                           106,777                         

D10 TELEPHONE  & COMMUNICATIONS 344,945 338,598               354,431            264,999                 364,178 255,426                         374,193                         

D12 RUBBISH REMOVAL 214,922 210,955               220,833            218,994                 220,833 158,555                         220,833                         

D14 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 158,685 158,685               163,049            158,374                 163,049 110,635                         163,049                         

D16 HEAT FOR BUILDINGS 629,395 605,192               646,703            568,360                 664,487 465,367                         682,760                         

D18 EQUIPMENT: OPERATION OF PLANT 45,000 45,000                 45,000              40,000                   45,000 32,500                           45,000                           

D20 REPAIR TO BUILDINGS 575,000 575,000               575,000            570,000                 575,000 455,730                         575,000                         

D22 UPKEEP OF GROUNDS SUPPLIES 14,050 14,050                 14,050              12,000                   14,050 12,050                           14,050                           

D24 BUILDING SECURITY 388,740 388,740               388,740            388,740                 388,740 282,646                         588,740                         

D26 GAS, OIL & GREASE 34,090 34,090                 34,090              34,088                   34,090 28,300                           34,090                           

D28 REPAIR TO EQUIPMENT: MTCE 33,250 33,250                 33,250              30,000                   33,250 28,650                           33,250                           

D30 OTHER EXPENSES: MAINTENANCE 50,000 50,000                 50,000              45,575                   50,000 35,500                           50,000                           

D32 EQUIPMENT: MAINTENANCE OF PLANT 32,500 32,500                 32,500              28,600                   32,500 26,452                           32,500                           

D34 IMPROVEMENT TO SITES 100,000 100,000               100,000            95,501                   100,000 68,500                           100,000                         

LEASING PROGRAM FOR MAINTENANCE FLEET 40,000                           

3,721,339 3,645,066           3,789,181         3,552,214              3,847,829                     2,722,406                      4,148,090                      



West Haven Board of Education

FY19 YTD

2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2018-19 2019-20

BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET

BENEFITS & FIXED CHARGES

E02 CENTRAL OFFICE - TRAVEL 800 -                       800                    -                          800 -                                  800                                 

E04 CENTRAL OFFICE - DUES & CONF. 7,000 8,326                   7,000                6,580                      7,000 2,550                             7,000                             

E06 TRAVEL, CONV. & DUES:  TCHRS/ADMIN. 50,000 31,956                 50,000              45,000                   50,000 46,756                           50,000                           

E08 PROFESSIONAL  CERTIFICATION REIMB.. 46,500 19,360                 46,500              40,000                   46,500 18,320                           46,500                           

E10 TRAVEL - MAINTENANCE 19,400 -                       19,400              19,200                   19,400 10,500                           19,400                           

E12 PROPERTY & LIABILITY INSURANCE 525,000 448,200               525,000            664,425                 525,000 485,250                         525,000                         

E14 HEALTH INSURANCE: CERTIFIED 9,255,945 8,637,725           9,255,945         8,986,604              9,487,344 6,515,219                      9,724,528                      

E16 LIFE INSURANCE: CERTIFIED 142,913 162,030               142,913            163,253                 142,913 95,275                           187,913                         

E18 SOCIAL SECURITY 746,365 695,103               757,561            757,560                 764,786 509,857                         772,434                         

E20 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 473,250 401,470               473,250            473,248                 477,407 318,271                         482,180                         

E22 MEDICARE ONLY - TAXES 832,079 780,522               873,683            873,660                 881,908 587,938                         890,727                         

E24 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 100,000 35,482                 100,000            33,486                   100,000 29,343                           100,000                         

E26 HEALTH INSURANCE: NON-CERT. 4,605,120 4,788,796           4,505,120         4,491,092              4,617,748 2,946,387                      4,733,192                      

E28 LIFE INSURANCE: NON-CERT. 45,000 -                       45,000              -                          45,000 30,000                           -                                  

E30 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 1,250,000 920,373               879,160            879,160                 1,050,000 668,434                         1,050,000                      

-                                

18,099,372 16,929,343         17,681,331      17,433,268            18,215,805                  12,264,100                    18,589,674                    



West Haven Board of Education

FY19 YTD

2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2018-19 2019-20

BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET

PURCHASED SERVICES:

F01 FOOD SERVICE -                    -                       -                    -                          -                                -                                  -                                  

F02 POSTAGE 90,000 51,174                 60,000              55,508                   60,000 44,359                           60,000                           

F04 PRINTING AND PUBLISHING 35,000 35,000                 35,000              28,000                   35,000 18,500                           35,000                           

F06 PHOTOCOPY SERVICES 296,809 296,809               269,809            269,809                 269,809 179,872                         269,809                         

F08 BOARD OF ED. - MISC. EXPENSES 1,350 1,350                   1,350                1,350                      1,350 940                                 1,350                             

F10 DATA PROCESSING SERVICES 78,500 78,500                 78,500              78,500                   78,500 52,300                           78,500                           

F12 CONSULTANT SERVICES 440,000 440,000               260,000            259,995                 260,000 173,350                         260,000                         

F14 SERVICE CONTRACTS 265,000 265,000               265,000            265,000                 265,000 175,250                         265,000                         

F18 BOARD OF ED. - OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,800 1,800                   1,800                1,800                      1,800 1,299                             1,800                             

F20 CENTRAL OFFICE - SUPPLIES 22,500 35,221                 22,500              20,500                   22,500 18,590                           22,500                           

F22 CENTRAL OFFICE - MISC. EXPENSE 3,500 2,121                   3,500                3,500                      3,500 2,500                             3,500                             

F26 POLICE AND FIRE 75,000 75,000                 395,000            395,000                 75,000 49,855                           75,000                           

F28 BOARD OF ED. - DUES & CONFERENCES 25,200 25,200                 26,440              26,440                   25,200 22,740                           25,200                           

F30 SUBSCRIPTIONS 3,500 1,025                   3,500                1,155                      3,500 2,550                             3,500                             

F32 EDWARD BENNETT RINK -                    -                       -                    -                          -                                -                                  -                                  

F34 FRANK FITZGERALD SPORTS COMPLEX 60,000 -                       60,000              60,000                   60,000 -                                  60,000                           

1,398,159 1,308,200           1,482,399 1,466,557 1,161,159 742,105                         1,161,159                      



West Haven Board of Education

FY19 YTD

2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2018-19 2019-20

BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET

INSTRUCTION:

G02 SUB FINDER/ANSWERING SERVICE 10,850 10,850                 10,742              10,742                   10,850 10,850                           10,850                           

G04 REPAIR TO EQUIPMENT: INSTRUCTION 25,000 25,000                 25,000              25,000                   25,000 20,050                           25,000                           

G06 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 20,000 20,000                 50,000              50,000                   20,000 18,500                           20,000                           

G08 ELEMENTARY READING DEVELOPMENT 12,000 12,000                 16,000              16,000                   12,000 11,500                           12,000                           

G10 TEACHING SUPPLIES 314,400 314,400               320,000            320,000                 314,400 300,825                         314,400                         

G12 TEXTBOOKS 225,000 225,000               225,000            225,000                 225,000 215,500                         225,000                         

G14 PERIODICALS 13,500 13,500                 13,500              13,500                   13,500 11,980                           13,500                           

G16 EDUCATIONAL MEDIA SUPPLIES 120,000 120,000               120,000            120,000                 120,000 116,982                         120,000                         

G18 STANDARDIZED TESTING PROGRAM 54,750 54,750                 54,750              54,750                   54,750 50,335                           54,750                           

G20 CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT & STAFF DEV. 75,000 75,000                 75,000              75,000                   45,000 40,183                           45,000                           

G22 LIBRARY BOOKS 67,500 67,500                 67,500              67,500                   37,500 30,575                           37,500                           

G24 OTHER LIBRARY EXPENSE 5,000 5,000                   5,000                5,000                      5,000 4,000                             5,000                             

G26 EQUIPMENT: NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 50,000 50,000                 50,000              50,000                   20,000 17,199                           20,000                           

G28 EQUIPMENT: INSTRUCTIONAL 50,000 50,000                 50,000              50,000                   50,000 40,250                           50,000                           

G29 TECHNOLOGY 320,000 320,000               360,000            360,000                 320,000 284,239                         320,000                         

G30 PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES 0 -                       -                    -                          -                                -                                  -                                  

G32 MEDICAL SERVICES: SUPPLIES 11,500 11,500                 11,500              11,500                   11,500 7,989                             11,500                           

G34 MEDICAL SERVICES: MISC. EXPENSE 25,000 25,000                 25,000              25,000                   25,000 11,979                           25,000                           

G36 EQUIPMENT: MEDICAL SERVICES 10,000 10,000                 10,000              10,000                   10,000 6,340                             10,000                           

G38 EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES: ACTIVITIES 100,000 100,000               100,000            100,000                 100,000 72,350                           100,000                         

LEASING PROGRAM FOR TECHNOLOGY 250,000                         

1,509,500 1,509,500           1,588,992 1,588,992 1,419,500 1,271,626                      1,669,500                      



West Haven MOA Compliance

Requirement Deliverable/Milestone Deadline Status

Fire Service Study

Plan/timeline for study completion Plan submitted to OPM 12/15/2018 Completed

Selection of vendor Vendor selected and approved by OPM Secretary 1/1/2019 Completed

Preliminary study

Preliminary study submitted (present to MARB at April 

meeting) 4/1/2019

Presentation of preliminary findings by consultant at 4/4 

MARB meeting

Final study Final study submitted (present to MARB at June meeting) 5/31/2019 Pending

FY 2018 Audit

Preliminary 2018 operating results

Draft statement of revenues, expenditures and change in fund 

balance 12/20/2018 Completed

Completion of Audit Submittal of audit, management letter, single audits to OPM 2/22/2019

Completed (Audit submitted Feb. 28; Management Letter 

submitted March 22)

Update on plan development Update submitted to MARB 1/15/2019 Completed

Preliminary plan completed Preliminary plan submitted 2/15/2019

Completed - OPM provided feedback.  Ongoing development 

of details.

Final plan completed Final plan submitted 5/31/2019 Pending

Plan to Address Administrative Capacity Issues

Organizational plan completed Plan submitted to MARB 2/15/2019

Consultant interviews scheduled week of 4/5. Current focus 

is on employee benefits.

FY 2020 Budget

Submittal of Mayor's recommended budget Recommended budget submitted to MARB 3/21/2019

Recommended budget submitted.  Subcommittee review at 

4/16 meeting.

MARB approval of City budget Approval by MARB 6/30/2019 Pending

5-Year Plan

Proposed Update to 5-Year Plan Updated plan included as part of budget 3/21/2019

Recommended budget submitted. 5-Year Plan updates 

pending.  Budget and 5-Yr Plan to be discussed at 4/16 

subcommittee.

MARB approval of Update to 5-Year Plan Approval by MARB 6/30/2019 Pending - plan to reflect proposed efficiency measures

Other Items

Plan for sale of City owned assets Plan submitted to MARB 4/1/2019 Letter received 4/1.

Contribute FY 2019 and budget FY 2020 ADC for 

Police and Fire pensions

Evidence that FY 2019 payment made and FY 2020 amounts 

budgeted 6/30/2019 Pending
Reserve policy for General Fund and health 

insurance plans Reserve policy submitted to MARB 6/30/2019 Pending

Efficiencies, Consolidations, Shared Services (a.k.a. measures for achieving budgetary savings)



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
City Council 
City of West Haven, Connecticut 
 

In planning and performing our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America, we considered the City of West Haven’s (“City”) internal control over 

financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 

statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 

control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency or 

combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 

misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 

basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that 

is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 

governance. 

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. We did identify certain 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be significant deficiencies as described in the 
accompanying memorandum. 

During our audit we became aware of matters that are opportunities to strengthen internal control or 

improve operating efficiency.  The memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes our 

comments and recommendations regarding those matters.  We have previously reported on the City’s 

internal control in separately issued Federal and State Single Audit reports dated February 26, 2019.  

This letter does not affect our report dated February 26, 2019, on the financial statements of the City. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, others 

within the entity and federal and state awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be 

used by anyone other than those specified parties. 

 

Wethersfield, Connecticut 
February 26, 2019 



 

1 

City of West Haven, Connecticut 
 

Recommendations to Management 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
We present for your consideration our comments and recommendations relating to internal controls and 
other operating and administrative matters, which came to our attention during the course of our audit.  
Comments and recommendations being repeated from the prior year’s audit are identified by an “*”. 
 

Significant Deficiency 
 

1. Payroll* 
 

A. Condition 
 

 Currently, the City Data Processing Lead Operator processes the payroll and has the ability to 
change employee pay rates.  In addition, the payroll register is not reviewed and approved prior to 
the payroll being processed. 

 
  Recommendations 
 

 We recommend that the Data Processing Lead Operator be restricted from the ability to change 
employee rates.  All employee rates should be updated by the Personnel Department based upon 
authorized payroll change forms. 

 
 We also recommend that the payroll register be reviewed and approved prior to the final 

processing. 
 

 In addition, we recommend that a payroll change report be produced, reviewed and approved by 
the Personnel Department to verify that all changes were authorized.  This should be completed 
for both the City and Board of Education payrolls.  The review and approval should be formally 
documented. 

 
Other Matters 

 
City 

 
2. Payroll 
 

Condition 
 
  Currently, the Data Processing Lead Operator has access to the check signature key. 
 
  Recommendation 
 

We recommend that Data Processing Lead Operator not have access to the signature key or be 
the employee who prints the payroll checks.   

 
   



 

2 

Recommendations to Management 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Other Matters 

 
City 

 

3. Year-End Closing Procedures 
 

  Condition 
 

  The City’s closing process was not complete until approximately six months after year end. 
  

  Recommendation 
 

We recommend that the City and Board of Education develop and implement procedures to 
prioritize the year-end closing procedures to ensure timeliness of financial reporting and the 
completion of the annual audit. 

 
4. Cash Disbursements 

 
A. Condition 
 

During our testing, we noted multiple invoices (insignificant amounts) that were for services provided 
in fiscal year 2017 that were paid during the fiscal year 2018.  This was due to the submission of 
invoices by City departments to the Finance Department after the City had closed the fiscal year. 

 
 Recommendation 
 

Expenditures should be recorded in the fiscal year in which the services were incurred. We 
recommend that all vendors be instructed to send all invoices directly to the Finance Department so 
they can be properly recorded.  The invoices then can be sent to the departments for approval.  

 
B. Condition 

 

 Currently, the signature key is maintained in the IT Department. 
 

  Recommendation 
 

We recommend that Finance Department maintain custody of the signature key.  The use of the 
signature key should be logged included the checks numbers that were signed for each use for 
both accounts payable and payroll. 
 
Bidding Documentation 

 
 Condition 
 
 During our testing, we noted the following: 
 

 Bid documentation for certain projects could not be located. 
 

 A project that was initially below the bid threshold expended into a larger project above the bid 
threshold. 
 

 Allingtown is not following the City’s bid policy. 

 
 Items purchased under State bid were not formally documented on the purchase order or 

voucher.  



 

3 

Recommendations to Management 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
City (Continued) 

 
5. Bidding Documentation (continued) 
 

Recommendations 
 

 We recommend the following: 
 

 Bid documentation be filed in a secure location and retained in accordance with the State record 
retention requirements and/or applicable audit requirements. 
 

 The City update the current purchasing policy to include a bid process/waiver form.  The policy 
should define the requirements for bid waiver as well as the required approvals.  For purchases 
made under bid waivers, the purchase orders should document the waiver number. 

 
 The City update the current purchasing policy to include a requirement that a bid waiver be 

required if the total cost of the project ultimately exceeds the bid threshold. 

 
 The Allingtown Fire Department should follow the City’s purchasing policy. 

 

 Items purchased under State bid or other similar cooperative purchasing collaboratives be 
formally documented on the purchase order to allow for proper review and approval. 

 
6. City Clerk  

 
A. Condition 

 

Currently, there are no unique separate logins for each City Clerk Department employee.  All 
employees process transactions using the same login. 

 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend that each City Clerk Department employee be assigned a unique login ID and 
that the login be used for all transactions processed by that employee.  
 
We also recommend that each employee log off after processing each transaction or when 
another employee will be responsible for processing transactions (break, lunches, etc.). 
 

B. Condition 
 

Since the login is shared, all users have rights to void transactions. 
 

Recommendation 
 

We recommend the ability to void transactions be limited to certain designated employees or 
that the voided transaction receipts be printed, signed by the clerk completing the transaction 
and approved by the City Clerk on a daily basis.  Approved voided transaction receipts should 
be retained in a separate file by the City Clerk for use in the monthly reconciliation process. 

 
In addition, we recommend that the City Clerk produce the voided transaction report on a 
monthly basis and that individual voided transactions approved during that month be agreed to 
the report.  Any discrepancies noted should be investigated and documented. 



 

4 

Recommendations to Management 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
City (Continued) 

 
6. City Clerk (continued) 

 
C. Condition 
 

During our testing, we noted that the number of days of activity that was deposited ranges from 4 to 
31 days, with the average being 15 days. 

 
 Recommendation 
 
 We recommend that deposits be made daily, but not less than weekly. 
 

7. Building Department Deposits 
 

Condition 
 

During our testing, we noted that in certain instances deposits were not made on a weekly basis. 
 
 Recommendation 
 
 We recommend that deposits be made daily, but not less than weekly. 

 
8. Tax Collector 
 

Condition: 
 

Currently, voided transactions must be approved by a senior staff member, but there is no review 
and approval of a monthly void report by the Tax Collector to monitor compliance with the procedure. 

 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend that the ability to void transactions be limited to certain employees and that the 
available void report be run and approved by the Tax Collector on a periodic basis (monthly). 

 
9. Capital Assets 
 

Condition 
 

We noted that the City’s capital asset addition identification policies and procedures do not include a 
procedure to review the minutes for land additions, donations and sales. 

 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend the City update the capital asset policies and procedures to include a procedure to 
review the minutes for land additions, donations and sales.  

 



 

5 

Recommendations to Management 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
City (Continued) 

 
10. Pension Plans 

 
A. Condition 
 

Currently the Police Pension Plan and Allingtown Pension Plan investments are managed by 
separate investment advisors with separate investment strategies. 

 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend that the City consider evaluating whether there are any cost savings and efficiencies 
gained by consolidating investment managers and investment strategies. 

 
We also recommend that the City review the current discount rate and investment strategy to ensure 
that the investment rates of return being used in the actuarial calculations are attainable over the 
long-term. 
 

B. Condition 
 

Currently, the City Finance Department does not received the Police Pension Plan investments 
statements on a monthly basis and therefore does not reconcile activity or monitor the statements 
to ensure that the activity is properly recorded until year end. 

 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend that the City Finance Department obtain, review and reconcile the plan activity on 
a monthly basis 

 
Alternative Investments 

 
C. Condition 

 

Although the City has their investment manager monitor their pension investments, currently, 
there is no formal monitoring of the alternative investments by the City Finance Department 
and/or Pension Commission. 

 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend the City obtain and review the audit and quarterly reports for each of the 
alternative investments in the pension fund. The reports should be reviewed and the 
investments evaluated for consistency with the pension plan investment policy and objectives. 

 
D. Condition* 

 
State Statutes require that when pension obligation bonds have been issued that the plan 
maintain a funded level of 100%.  At June 30, 2018 the plan is funded at 85%. 

 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend the City comply with State Statutes with respect to funding the pension plan. 

  



 

6 

Recommendations to Management 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Allingtown Fire Department Fund 

 
11. Personnel Files 

 
Condition 

 
The City Personnel Department does not maintain adequate personnel files and salary related 
documentation of the Allingtown Fire Department employees.  

 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend the City Personnel Department maintain the official personnel files for all City 
employees. 

 
12. Capital Assets 
 

A. Condition 
 

Capital asset deletions should be identified and reported annually.  We noted that the Allingtown Fire 
Department have not had any significant deletions over the past two fiscal years. 

  
Recommendation 

 
We recommend the Allingtown Fire Department, perform a physical inventory of their capital assets 
and delete any assets that have been disposed of or that are no longer in use. 

 
We also recommend that a deletion policy and related form be developed and implemented to 
ensure that all asset disposals are properly approved and recorded. 

 
13. Budget and Related Expenditure General Ledger 

 
Condition 

 
Currently, the Allingtown Fire Department budget format does not present the budget in a format that 
is consistent with the City’s financial statement presentation with respect to expenditure classification 
and categorization. 
 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend that the Allingtown Fire Department budget be reviewed and modified to be 
consistent with the City’s financial statement presentation and classifications. 
 
We also recommend that the budget lines be clearly defined to ensure the proper budget line is 
charged as cash disbursements are processed. 

 
 
 
 
 

  



 

7 

Recommendations to Management 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Allingtown Fire Department Fund 

 
14. Unallocated Contingency Account  

 
Condition 

 
Currently, the Allingtown Fire Department records expenditures directly to the unallocated 
contingency budget line account.  

 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend that the Allingtown Fire Department transfer amounts from the unallocated budget 
line to the appropriate budget line.  This will allow for proper reporting of expenditures by department 
for proper financial reporting and to provide accurate data for budget monitoring and future budget 
development. 

 
Board of Education 

 
15. Journal Entries 

 
Condition 

 
Currently, the Board of Education journal entries are prepared and recorded by the Business 
Manager.   

 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend the Board of Education implement procedures to have the journal entries reviewed 
and approved by someone other than the preparer and ensure the approval of journal entries is 
formally documented. 
 

16. Student Activity Funds* 
 
A. Condition 
 

Currently, there are certain student activity and other accounts for which the only authorized signor is 
the teacher advisor. 

 
Recommendation 

 
We recommend that the Business Manager be added as a signor on all accounts in order to provide 
proper monitoring and access to account information of the District. 

 
B. Condition 
 

Various student activity fund accounting records are maintained on a manual basis and are not 
under general ledger control. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that all student activity accounts be maintained in general ledger software. 

  



 

8 

Recommendations to Management 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 

Board of Education 
 

16. Student Activity Funds (continued) 
 

C. Condition 
 

Currently, one employee at each school is responsible for all aspects of cash receipts, cash 
disbursements, record keeping and accounting related to the student activity funds. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that the Board of Education implement procedures to segregate the 
responsibilities related to the various functions and to add policies and procedures that require 
approvals for certain transactions and review of items such as bank reconciliations and general 
ledger activity reports. 
 

17. General Fund Budgetary Monitoring 
 

A. Education Grants 
 

Condition 
 

We noted that in some instance certain education grants are overexpended during the year, but 
are adjusted to the correct balances after year end. 
 

Recommendation 
 
We recommend that the education grants fund be properly monitored to ensure that they are not 
overspent.  This will allow for proper monitoring and reporting of the general fund’s budget status. 
 

B. Year End Cash Disbursements 
 

Condition 
 
During our testing, we noted that a significant number and dollar value of invoices that related to 
the June 30, 2018 fiscal year were incorrectly charged to July and August 2018.  The invoices 
were subsequently properly reclassified as accounts payable and charged to the fiscal 2018 
budget. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that invoices be properly charged to the correct fiscal year as they are processed 
to increase efficiency and allow for proper monitoring and reporting of the general fund’s budget 
status. 
 
  



 

9 

Recommendations to Management 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
Best Practices 

 
18 Investment Policy 

 
Condition 
 
The City does not currently have a comprehensive investment policy that addresses all funds and 
the related allowable investments. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend the City adopt a comprehensive investment policy that would assist management 
in effectively executing and monitoring investment activity. The policy should address all 
components of an effective policy including but not limited to: 

 

 Investment objectives 

 Standards of care 

 Safekeeping and custody 

 Suitability and authorization of investment 

 Interest rate risk 

 Credit risk 

 Custodial credit risk 

 Investment parameters 

 Reporting and monitoring 
 

19. Employee Security Training 
 
Condition 
 
The City experienced an IT security event that affected the City IT systems. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that the City consider implementing an annual employee security training program 
to update employees on best practices and how to identify suspicious e-mails and other security 
risks. 
 
 

Follow-up on Prior Year’s Recommendations 
 
The following comments and recommendations from the prior year’s audit are not being repeated, since 
the City has implemented procedures to address the recommendations or they were otherwise resolved: 
 

 Fund deficits have been eliminated 

 Data collection and federal reporting package 

 Checks are not being held after being printed 
 
 



CITY OF WEST HAVEN

FY17 - 18 Audit Issues

ID # Area Condition Remedy Target Date Status

1 Payroll Currently, the City Data Processing Lead Operator processes the 

payroll and has the ability to change employee pay rates. In addition, 

the payroll register is not reviewed and approved prior to the payroll 

being processed.

An employee in the Personnel Department will be 

responsible for changing rates when needed.

05/01/2019 Training 

Needed

2 Payroll Currently, the Data Processing Lead Operator has access to the 

check signature key.

Check signature key will be kept in the Finance 

Director's office safe.

04/01/2019

3 Year-End Closing 

Procedures

The City’s closing process was not complete until approximately six 

months after year end.

Finance Director and Accouting Director will drive 

process and accountability targeting Dec 31, 2019 

completion of FY18-19 audit

12/31/2019

Complete development of vendor payment tool to 

identify unpaid bills

05/01/2019

Communicate to Department Heads the need to 

identify any unpaid bills related to FY19 no later than 

Aug 1

03/29/2019

Accounting to prepare entries accruing needed costs 

into FY19

08/10/2019

Develop ongoing review process with Department 

Heads to help them understand what is hitting their 

09/01/2019

During our testing, we noted multiple invoices (insignificant amounts) 

that were for services provided in fiscal year 2017 that were paid 

during the fiscal year 2018. This was due to the submission of 

invoices by City departments to the Finance Department after the City 

had closed the fiscal year.

Cash Disbursements4.A

Heads to help them understand what is hitting their 

departments

4.B Cash Disbursements Currently, the signature key is maintained in the IT Department. Check signature key will be kept in the Finance 

Director's office safe.

04/01/2019

• Bid documentation for certain projects could not be located. The document reffered to was a 2012 project, misfiled 

after employee turnovers. The files containing bid 

documents have been relocated to ensure improper 

removal no longer occurs.

01/01/2019

• A project that was initially below the bid threshold expended into a 

larger project above the bid threshold.

Department heads have been notified to contact 

purchasing director prior to adressing any further 

issues that may be exposed.

01/01/2019

• Allingtown is not following the City's bid policy. Finance Director will forward the Purchasing Policy to 

Allingtown.

04/01/2019 Need to 

locate 

policy

• Items purchased under State bid were not formally documented on 

the purchase order or voucher

Department heads have been notified that all 

purchases made from the State Approved vendor list 

need to be properly documented.

01/01/2019

6.A City Clerk Currently, there are no unique separate logins for each City Clerk 

Department employee. All employees process transactions using the 

same login.

Need to investigate and propose solution. 06/01/2019

6.B City Clerk Since the login is shared, all users have rights to void transactions. Need to investigate and propose solution. 06/01/2019

6.C City Clerk During our testing, we noted that the number of days of activity that 

was deposited ranges from 4 to 31 days, with the average being 15 

days.

Instruct City Clerk that deposits must be brought to 

Accounting daily (or at worst weekly).

04/01/2019

7 Building Department During our testing, we noted that in certain instances deposits were 

not made on a weekly basis.

Instruct Building Department that deposits must be 

brought to Accounting daily.

04/01/2019

Bidding Documentation5



CITY OF WEST HAVEN

FY17 - 18 Audit Issues

ID # Area Condition Remedy Target Date Status

8 Tax Department Currently, voided transactions must be approved by a senior staff 

member, but there is no review and approval of a monthly void report 

by the Tax Collector to monitor compliance with the procedure.

Tax Director will work with IT to develop needed 

reports.

05/01/2019

9 Capital Assets We noted that the City’s capital asset addition identification policies 

and procedures do not include a procedure to review the minutes for 

land additions, donations and sales.

Accounting Director will develop a new policy 

(currently there is no written policy).

06/01/2019

10.A Pension Plans Currently the Police Pension Plan and Allingtown Pension Plan 

investments are managed by separate investment advisors with 

separate investment strategies.

Finance Director to investigate and propose solution 

before 6/1

06/01/2019

10.B Pension Plans Currently, the City Finance Department does not received the Police 

Pension Plan investments statements on a monthly basis and 

therefore does not reconcile activity or monitor the statements to 

ensure that the activity is properly recorded until year end.

Finance Director to request copies of monthly 

statements going forward and retain.

05/01/2019

10.C Alternative Investments Although the City has their investment manager monitor their pension 

investments, currently, there is no formal monitoring of the alternative 

investments by the City Finance Department and/or Pension 

Finance Director to request copies of quarterly 

statements going forward and retain.

05/01/2019

investments by the City Finance Department and/or Pension 

Commission.

10.D Alternative Investments State Statutes require that when pension obligation bonds have been 

issued that the plan maintain a funded level of 100%. At June 30, 

2018 the plan is funded at 85%.

Build line into future budgets to build up funding. FY21 

Budget

11 Allingtown FD Personnel 

files

The City Personnel Department does not maintain adequate 

personnel files and salary related documentation of the Allingtown Fire 

Department employees.

Finance Director has met with AFD, personnel files will 

be collected and delivered to City Personnel 

Department (copies kept at AFD).

05/30/2019

12 Allingtown FD Capital 

Assets

Capital asset deletions should be identified and reported annually. We 

noted that the Allingtown Fire Department have not had any significant 

deletions over the past two fiscal years.

Finance Director has met with AFD, physical inventory 

will be conducted and completed before 6/30.  

Accounting Director to work with AFD to enforce 

process being used by the City.

06/30/2019

13 Allingtown FD Budget & 

General Ledger

Currently, the Allingtown Fire Department budget format does not 

present the budget in a format that is consistent with the City’s 

financial statement presentation with respect to expenditure 

classification and categorization.

Finance Director has met with AFD, and will work with 

them to review and finalize account mappings.  AFD 

will use the same budget file as all other City 

Departments in the FY20-21 budget cycle.

10/01/2019

14 Allingtown FD 

Unallocated Contingency 

Account

Currently, the Allingtown Fire Department records expenditures 

directly to the unallocated contingency budget line account.

Budget Transfer file has been sent to AFD.  Going 

forward they will be part of the Finance Director's 

crackdown on departments not following the City 

transfer policy.

04/01/2019

15 Board of Education Currently, the Board of Education journal entries are prepared and 

recorded by the Business Manager.

To be addressed by BOE

16.A Board of Education Currently, there are certain student activity and other accounts for 

which the only authorized signor is the teacher advisor.

To be addressed by BOE

16.B Board of Education Various student activity fund accounting records are maintained on a 

manual basis and are not under general ledger control

To be addressed by BOE



CITY OF WEST HAVEN

FY17 - 18 Audit Issues

ID # Area Condition Remedy Target Date Status

16.C Board of Education Currently, one employee at each school is responsible for all aspects 

of cash receipts, cash disbursements, record keeping and accounting 

related to the student activity funds.

To be addressed by BOE

17.A Board of Education We noted that in some instance certain education grants are 

overexpended during the year, but are adjusted to the correct 

balances after year end.

To be addressed by BOE

17.B Board of Education During our testing, we noted that a significant number and dollar value 

of invoices that related to the June 30, 2018 fiscal year were 

incorrectly charged to July and August 2018. The invoices were 

subsequently properly reclassified as accounts payable and charged 

to the fiscal 2018 budget.

To be addressed by BOE

18 Investment Policy The City does not currently have a comprehensive investment policy 

that addresses all funds and the related allowable investments.

Need to investigate and propose solution.

19 Employee Security 

Training

The City experienced an IT security event that affected the City IT 

systems.

IT Director to investigate and propose solution. 06/01/2019



MEMORANDUM 

Municipal Accountability Review Board 

To: Members of the Municipal Accountability Review Board 

From: Julian Freund, OPM 

Subject: West Haven Firefighters Union Tentative Agreement 

Date: March 28, 2019 

Background 

The previous collective bargaining agreement between the City of West Haven and the West Haven 
Professional Firefighters expired June 30, 2017.  A Tentative Agreement for a contract term through 
June 30, 2022 was recently approved by the Firefighters union and by the City Council.  At its March 12 
meeting, the MARB’s West Haven subcommittee voted to recommend approval of the proposed 
contract by the full MARB. 

There are currently 19 members of this bargaining unit. 

Summary of Major Economic Provisions 

Wages: 

The Tentative Agreement provides for wage adjustments as follows:  

 FY 2017/18: 0% general wage increase

 FY 2018/19: 0% general wage increase

 FY 2019/20: 0% general wage increase

 FY 2020/21: 0% general wage increase

 FY 2021/22: 1% general wage increase

The prior agreement covering the period July 2013 to June 2017 provided general wage increases of 2% 
in each year of the contract. 

Health Insurance: 

 Shifts to HDHP with a deductible of $2,000/$4,000

 Health savings account with the City contributing 50% toward the deductible

 Employee contribution toward premium:
o Current = 11%
o FY 2019/20 = 11%



o FY 2020/21 = 12% 
o FY 2021/22 = 13% 

 Retirees to be eligible for same health benefit and at same premium cost share as actives and as 
may change over time 

 Retiree health for employee only for those hired after ratification (not spouse) 
 
Pension for the members of the Firefighters union is set by a separate pension agreement for Police 
and Firefighters. 
 
A cost analysis of the proposed contract is attached along with contract comparisons with other fire 
departments.  A detailed summary of the tentative agreement highlights is also attached. 



Summary of Savings: Firefighters Union Local 11

General Topic Change FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22

Wages Wages Assumption (all Funds) 0% 0% 1.00%

Wages $ (general wage increase) 
1 -$                  -$                  (12,748)$          

Step Yearly Increment Changes ($) (23,090)$           (20,263)$           (15,868)$          

Healthcare HDHP / HSA Plan Design Change effective 7/1/19 (FY2020) 25,423$            30,771$            35,808$           

Health Premium Cost Share HPHP Employee Cost Share 11% 12% 13%

Pension 
2

Pension contribution is set by separate pension agreement -$                  -$                  -$                 

Current contribution 12.5%

Retiree HI Coverage changes as it changes for actives

Total Ongoing Savings: 2,333$              10,508$            7,192$             

Sick Leave 
3 Current: 15 day/yr Max 175

New: 12 days/yr Max 175 13,842$            -$                  -$                 

Vacation Leave No changes

-$                  -$                  -$                 

Total Savings (includes one-time and non-recurring) 16,175$            10,508$            7,192$             

Savings as compared to 5-Year Plan 16,175$            10,508$            27,132$           

Notes:

1) Figure shown in FY 21/22 reflects general wage increase at 1%.  Five-Year Plan assumed 0% and no steps through FY 20/21 followed by 1% for FY 21/22.

2) Pension contributions are negotiated under a separate contract.

Employee contributions according to current pension agreement:

FY 2019: 12.5%

FY 2020: 13.0%

FY 2021: 13.0%

3) Sick leave savings calculated as average daily salary * 3 days

Fiscal Impact 

NO IMMEDIATE SAVINGS



Firefighter TA Salary Analysis

2018-2019 Step Contract: 0% 2019-2020 Step Contract: 0% 2020-2021 Step Contract: 1% 2021-2022
EE# 1 75,380.76       -               75,380.76        -                75,380.76        -                 753.48             76,134.24        

EE# 2 75,380.76       -               75,380.76        -                75,380.76        -                 753.48             76,134.24        

EE# 3 75,380.76       -               75,380.76        -                75,380.76        -                 753.48             76,134.24        

EE# 4 75,380.76       -               75,380.76        -                75,380.76        -                 753.48             76,134.24        

EE# 5 67,243.80       -               67,243.80        -                67,243.80        -                 656.76             67,900.56        

EE# 6 67,243.80       -               67,243.80        -                67,243.80        -                 656.76             67,900.56        

EE# 7 67,243.80       -               67,243.80        -                67,243.80        -                 656.76             67,900.56        

EE# 8 67,243.80       -               67,243.80        -                67,243.80        -                 656.76             67,900.56        

EE# 9 67,243.80       -               67,243.80        -                67,243.80        -                 656.76             67,900.56        

EE# 10 67,243.80       -               67,243.80        -                67,243.80        -                 656.76             67,900.56        

EE# 11 67,243.80       -               67,243.80        -                67,243.80        -                 656.76             67,900.56        

EE# 12 67,243.80       -               67,243.80        -                67,243.80        -                 656.76             67,900.56        

EE# 13 64,327.94       2,915.86      67,243.80        -                67,243.80        -                 656.76             67,900.56        

EE# 14 59,240.94       2,495.18      61,736.12        4,190.84       65,926.96        1,314.33        659.27             67,900.56        

EE# 15 59,240.94       2,495.18      61,736.12        4,190.84       65,926.96        1,314.33        659.27             67,900.56        

EE# 16 58,125.83       2,773.53      60,899.36        3,240.46       64,139.82        3,119.34        641.40             67,900.56        

EE# 17 58,125.83       2,773.53      60,899.36        3,240.46       64,139.82        3,119.34        641.40             67,900.56        

EE# 18 55,406.08       3,247.96      58,654.04        2,641.68       61,295.72        3,703.72        612.96             65,612.40        

EE# 19 51,795.64       6,388.88      58,184.52        2,758.88       60,943.40        3,296.85        609.43             64,849.68        

1,245,736.64  23,090.12    1,268,826.76   20,263.16     1,289,089.92   15,867.91      12,748.49        1,317,706.32   














































































































































	West Haven - Subcommittee Update
	West Haven - BAN Issuance
	West Haven Monthly Financial Report
	West Haven MOA Compliance Status
	West Haven 2018 Management Letter
	West Haven Management Letter Response Plan
	Firefighters Tentative Agreement



